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STRATEGIC REPORT

The directors present their. strategic report for Jaguar Land Rover Limited (‘the company ) for the: year
ended 31 March.2020.

Principal activity
The ‘company's principal activity during the year was the design, development manufacture and marketing
of high performance luxury saloons, specrallst sports cars, four wheel drive -off-road vehicles and related

components aid services. The preduct range is constantly being improved and updated as part of the.
company’s commitment to provide technically advanced and competitively priced luxury vehicles.

-Review of business and future developments
Fiscal 2020 performance and product porifclio

‘The company has seen @ decrease in its turnover to £19,849 million (2019: £20,870 mllllon) Loss before tax
has improved to a loss of £(708) million (2019: £(3,872) mllhen)

Principal products for 2020 were:
XE
X4
“XF
F-PACE
F-TYPE
E-PACE
I-PACE
Discovery”
Discovery Sport:
Range Rover
Range Rover Sport
Range Rover Evogue:
Rarige Rover Velar
Defender

Key performancé indicators:

The key performance indicators (KPls) used are set ot below:

Turnover Decrease due to lower wholesales in all markets £19,849 million £20,870 million
except North America caused in part by the COVID-
19 pandemic.

Loss before.  Decrease in loss before fax primarily driven by  £(708) million £(3,872) million
{ax exceptional £3.1 billion write down and £136 miillion '
exceptional charge in relation to redundancy in the
prior year compared to £108 million and £29 miltion in
the curréent year respectively.

Net assets Increase i net assets is primarily aftributed to an  £5522 million  £5,151 million
improvement to the company's. defined benefit ‘ '
pension obligations, which-are in a net asset position
at 31 March 2020, and hlgher PPE and intanglble
assets-partially offsat by higher barrowings.

Headcount. Decrease in the nuinber of employees due ta :33,084 38,199
{average) restriicturing program Initiated I Q4.FY19. Employees’ Employees’
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STRATEGIC REPORT'(CDNTINUED) ‘
Review of busiiiess and future developments (continued)
Qur Products and Innovation

Jaguar Land Rover is proud.to be the UK's largest -automotive manufacturer, respected across. the world for
our-outsfanding, award-winning products and Ihnovative, customer-focused technologles..

‘We relentlessly innavate to creaté exciting ‘and inherently diverse products with a compelling combination of
British.design and engineerihg infegrity.

This year, Jaguar refreshed lts sport-saloon XE, with an enhanced exterior, an ‘alt-iew luxurious interior and
the introduction.of new intuitive. technology: wireless device charging, embedded Apple Car Play and Spotify
app and the first-in-segment ClearSightinterior rear view mirror, feeding i images of the road behind to a high-
definition screen.

-Our iconic sports, car, the Jaguar F-TYPE has also been refreshed,. receiving overwhelmlngly positive-
customer and media feedback.

In November.2019, the groundbreaking Jaguar l-PAGE added the coveted Golden Steering Wheel to its vast
collection of prestigious awards.

For Land Rover, we go abavé and beyond when it comes to capability and innovation. In September 2019,

we launched our new Defendér to critical acclaim. Itis, of course, our most-capable and durable Land Rover
aver, simply unstoppable. Yet, itis also relevant for the digital age, with the latest advances in connectivity,
including the world's first dual-modem, dual ‘€SIM design, Software-Over-The-Air (SOTA) for all key
“functional-and infotainment systeris, offenng Clear Sight Ground View, our innovative “invisible” bonnet as
well as efficient drivefrains, with mild-hybrid and, soon, plug-in hybrid technology.

Plug-in hybrid_technology Is.-already available on both the Range Rover and Range Rover Sport: Now,
courtesy of our new Premium Transverse Architecture (PTA), we have expanded our electrified Land Rover
vehicle line-up with our latest 1.5 litre: -thres-cylinder plug-in hybrid systein offering emissions from -only
32g/km and an all-electric range of up-to.66km. This technology. is riow available for both the all-new Range
Rover Evogqtie and comprehensively updated Land Rover Discovery: Sport

The unprecedented disruptions caused by the COVID-19 outbraak inevitably impacted sales and ‘profitability
‘in the fourth quarter. Desplte the rnany headwinds, sales of our all-electric Jaguar I-PACE and our all-riew
Range Rover Evogue increased year-on-year. In addmon ‘wesold more of our halo.Special Vehicle products
than ever before. We have reacted quickly and decisively to the’ pandemic, with an acceleraited focus on
improving' casfi-flow’and strengthening liquidity to pave the way for long-term EBIT margin improvement.
‘Charge+, the next:phase of our fransformation programme, is already ahead.of schedulé.

investing in Mobility

Through collaboration 'and continuous: investment into R&D, we. are leading the transition to -connected
seamless integrated mobility. This- year we: celebrated ‘the official opening -of two world-class fac;lltles our
Advanced Product Creation Centre :in Gaydon and the National Automotive Innovation Centre in Warwick,
one of Europe’s largest automotive RED hubs. Both embady the.spirit of collaboration and creativity to tackle
society’s greatest mobility challenges,

We are already leading the way with Project Vector, a physical representation- of our “Destination Zero”

ambition to fnake our societies safer and healthier and: our environment cleaner. Unvelled i February 2020,

Vectorisan, advanced, autonomy-ready electric vehicle designed to meet thé needs.of both public and private
mobility systems.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

JaguarLand Rover’s Deslination Zero mission for zero emissions, zero accidents and zero.congestion is
built on the solid foundations of a-long-standing, commitment to the environment and society.

Our vision is a world of sustaihable, smart mobility: our responsible future. Today’s industrial: révolution is
driven by waste reduction, . derzrbonrsatlon impraving air quality, increasing automation and advancing
technology. We will use resources responsibly to-help build a better society-and.a cleaner envirohment — and.
In doing so, drive'sustainable, profitable growth.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
Streamlined energy and carbon reporfing (continued)

A Jandmark an Jaguar Land Rovei’s Destination Zero journey is achieving and maintaining Carbor Neutral
status, The' culmination’ of a long-term environmental managernent plan latinched In 2009, Jaguar Land
Rover was certified.on 31 January 2020 as achieving Carbon Neutral operations for the second cansecutive;
year by the Carbon Trust. This official recognmon corifirmed that business operafions met the interfriationally.
recognised PAS 2060 standard between April 2018 and March 2019 across Jaguar Lard-Rover vehicle
marufacturifig, assembly operatlons engine'manufacturing. and product development sites in the UK.

In line with the UK Gavernment’s Sireamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting (SECR) framework, the table.
below shows Jaguar Land Rovers UK. operatlonal energy and: carbon footprint, for the company‘s
marniufacturing volume for the Fiscal year 2020. The COze is calculated with a location based approach using
UK average grid intensity conversion factors {2019). However, Jaguar Land Rover continues. to purchase
100% renewabte REGO (Rehewable Energy Guarantee of Origin)-backed zero.carbon electricity for.all core
UK operations..

UK Operations 2019/20

Energy-consumption used to calculate-emissioris: kWh 1,274,998,136
Emissions.from.combustion of gas tCOze (Scope 1) 135,999
Emissions from combustion-of fue! (Scope 1) 10,734
Emissions from business travel in rental cars or employee-owned vehicles where, o

corpany is responsible for purchasing the. fuel (Scope 3) 2,640
Emissions from purchased electricity (Scope 2 location-based) 123,568
Total gross COze-based on above 272,941
Intensity ratio: tCOz2e/Em 11.87

Dita is compiled for UK locations in accordance with GHG protocols for finance control:

In addition to this investment in renewable energy, energy saving projects such as solar paneis-and LED.
lighting have made-consistent reductions in actual consumption. In :September-2019, for instance, Jaguar,
Land Rover unvelled world-leading new facilifies at its’ Gaydon site in Warwickshire, creating one of the UK's
most sustainable non-domestic buildings and. the country’s Iargest -automotive creation and development
centre.

The Gaydon site forms an integral part of Jaguar Land Rover's Destination Zero mission, and up to 20% of
the energy-to run the Gaydon Triangle comes from.2,800m? of photovoltalc solar panels on the roof. The
remainder-of the site's electricity is derived from 100% renewable sources. The same glazing tectinology as
the Eden Project was used to bring natural I(ght into the building wherever possible and make it more énergy
efficierit. Collectively, such ‘enhancements contribute to.a drastic reduction in energy consumption.

In the UK, Jaguar Land Rover’s operating COz emissiors are down 71% versus'a baseline taken in ‘2007,
and this includes the purchase of REGO-backed eléctricity. Furthermore, the average-amaunt of energy:used
to build one of our vehicles has reduced by 33% sirice 2007.

As part of our Destination Zero strategy we are evaluating our wider carbon footprint. Fror 2020 évery new
Jaguar Land Rover model line will be electrified, giving our customers even moré chaice, ‘We wilt intreduce
a portfolio of electrified products across our‘model range, embracing fully electric, plug~|n hybrid and mild
hybrid vehicles s well as.continuing to offer the latest diesel and petro| engines.

Please visit our website for further information on how.we are electrifying our product portfollo driving fowards
& zero carbon world.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
‘Challénges and opportunities

in_the: long ‘term, geopotitical, technological. and regulstory changes pose significant chalienges for the
automotive industry. These still require ; substantial levels of investment, whilst the outbreak:of COVID-19 has
31gmﬁcantly impacted the business more recently. The disruption caused by+he virus is rapidly changing the
world and our way of life, .giving rise to new: opporfunities, most notably in relation to autonemous driving,
wvehicle.connectivity, electrification and shared mobility solutions (ACES).

Chalienges

COVID-19: The outbreak 6f COVID-19 has significantly impacted our financial results in the year ended 31
March 2020. The company. enacted temiporary: plant shutdowns in the first quarter of the year ended 31
March 2021 with the restart of production at most of dur plants from mld-May and through June 2020. Our
dealer network has also.been impacted by the lockdowns. put in place but afmost all of our dealerships are
now open_ (fully or partiaily). Our supply chain has inevitably been disrupted by COVID-19, however, -our
supply’ base operations are-gradually returning and are supporting the restart of our own operations. Our
people are our business and their safety-ahd well-being has been paramount during-this crisis; with many of
our employees furfoughed under the UK government's j6b retention scheme as a.result of the temporary
plant shutdowns. Gradually, our employees.are beginning to return to our sites and we have initiated health
and sgfety protocols following government guidelines 16 ensure-our operations can restart safely.

Trade relations: Any barriers that pose a threat to-frictionless trade and the free movement of parts and
labour wifl likely have ‘an adverse effect on our businéss operations, The UK formalfy exited the EU.on 31
January 2020 with. a transition period to facllitate an orderly withdrawal ending on 31 December 2020.
However, uncertainty remains over the future terms ‘of trade that may not be concluded by-the end of the
‘transition pericd, exacerbated by the disruption caused by COVID-19.

Regulatory environment: Continued. tighteriing ‘of -eimissions' regulation drives tp manufacturing costs,
causes consumer uncertainty and adds additional costin the form of ifcreased tax applied to non-compliant
vehicles, for instance, the move.to the Worldwide Harmonised Lxght Vehicle Test Procedure (WLTP) in
Europe during 2018. Despite significant improvements in fuel economy, reduction in GO2 and NOx
-emissions, the demand for diesel vehicles has declined. This is largely as & restilt of government policy and
tighter regulations, several cauntries having pIedged ‘o bring forward their strategies to phase out the sale of
internal combustion engine vehicles altogether.

We continue to:expand electrified powertraln options across‘our model range by offenng fuli battery-electric,
plug-in hybnd ‘and mild-hybrids-on all of our new and refreshed:vehiclés, ‘as well’as continuing to refine our
latest technologically advanced diesel and petrol Ingenlum engines to ensure compliance with emissions
regulations.

Mass_adoption of electric vehicles (EVs): Widespread consumer acceptance and take up of EVs is
growing at pace, but much stil| depends on the. deployment of‘adequate charging: infrastructure. Practical
access to private charging points and- a reduction in the total ownefship cost of EVs are still maior factors in
mainstream adoption. As EV'sales rise, the:relative casts should fall as scale efficiencies are realised inthe
industry. Fossil fuels. remaln the primary source of electric power generation. Until there'is a'more substantial
shift to decarbonise the energy ‘praduction process, including significant substttuhon into renewable: energy
sources; achleving frue-low emissions mability will be-more difficuit.

Opportunities-

New and refreshed models: We continue to launch new-and refreshed products as partof .ouf- long-term
growth strategy.

During the year, sales of the all-new Range Rover Evogus, increased significantly: Sales: of the refreshed
L:and Rover Discovery Sport also began and the refreshied.Jaguar F-TYPE was launched. The ali-new Land
Rover Defender was revealed at the Frankfurt Motor Show in September 2019 and production began at our
plant in Siovakia'in January 2020. We aiso continue ta update our exnstlhg model range with industry leading
design -and technplogy, incliding the latest infotalnment systems: and full battery electric-and hybrid
propulsion.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
Challenges-and opportunities (continued)

Electrification: We plan to offer.electrified options on all of 6ur new and refreshed models from this year
anwards. Plugin hybrid variants df the Range Rover Evoque, Land Rover Discovery Sport and..the fiew
Defender are due to'ga on sale later this year, following the success of the Jaguar 1-PACE. In suppoit of our
-electrification ‘strategy, the manufactufeé of next-generation. Etectric Drive . Units. (EDUs), developed: in
partnership with BMW, -will begin at.our Engine Manufacturing Centre in Wolverbiampton later this year. The
start of operations at our Battery Assembly Centre in Hams Hall, North Wanwickshire, will also bea significant
step forward.

Autonomous;. connected and ‘shared mobility: We continue to intraduce new driver assistance
technologies .into our vehicles. and. are developing more advanced self-driving technologles in response to
legal framewarks permitting higher degrees of auternation.

The new Defender, for instance; Is the fifst model to showcase-our most advanced in-cartechriology to date:
the Plvi Pro- infotainment system. This groundbreaking system features a more. intuitive interface’ and
‘Software-Over-The-Alr (SOTA) updates, -ensuring ultimate connectivity and. enabling customers to benefit
from the latest software, wherever they are In the world.

‘Scalablmy ‘and flexibility: Jaguar Land Rover's family of Ingenium petrol and diesel -engines are based
around. a modular, flexible and scalable .ali-aluminium design with a choice of three-, four-, and six-cylinder
engines that-also support mild and plug-in hybrid propulsion technology. We will begin the roll-out of our next-
generation Modular Longitudinal Architecture (MLA) across our-product portfolio in the coming year. This
flexibility eind . scatability supports the transformation of our business with more streamliined englneerlng and
manufacturing processes and increased commonality: across our model range, with the aim of improving
quality, reducing cost and increasing operational efficiency.

Collaboration: The techiological ‘and regulatory changes in the automotive industry require: continued
srgmﬁcant mvestment Automotive companies are facmg ‘escalating.costs at a time.of consumer uncertainty,
when adoption and acceptance of electrified vehicles is slowly: growing; but barriers still remain. |n this
challenging envlronment wider collaboration is essential to share financial.and operatiohal risks, which Is
why we are working with pioneering arganisations such as Wayimo to develop and pilot self-driving
technologies, and with BMW to develop next-generation Eléctric Drive Units to' power our fiiture battery
electric vehicles,

Principal risks and uncertainties.

The COVID-19 global pandemlc has ‘had a significant impact on our financial performance and business
operations with sacial drstancmg ‘measures .ahd enfarced lockdowns by goveinments.across all of our key
regions..As a fesult aur retailer network and sales have been significantly impacted. We enacted temporary

plant closures in the UK and Europe from the end of March with similar shutdowns.in our supply- base: We
have since restarted production in:most of our plants from mid- May. However, we do expect a considerable
impact on our financial performance in the quarter ended 30 June.2021.. The health and wellbeing of our
employees is. our first priority with many of our employees futloughed undef the UK.governinenit's job
refention scheme. We have developed robust protocol and guideliries to. suppoft a safe return to workfor-our
.employees adopting strict social distancing measures across our business to protect and reassure our
workforce as they return to. work.

‘The principal risks and uncertainties of the Jaguar Land Rover group, of which the' company is part, are

included in the Jaguar Land Rover Autornotive pic Annual Report for the year-ended 31 March 2020. The

principal risks and uncertainties are considered at a group level and:are cansidered to:be similar to-those of
the company. Within thecontext-of the widet. Jaguar Land Rover group; the principal risks.and uncertainties

facing the company include, but are not limited to, the foilowing:

Credit risk

The company has palicies that.require appropriate credit checks. en.potential customers before sales are
‘made. The amount-of exposire to any individual counterparty is subject to.a limit, which is specified within
Iindividual agreements.

Liquidity risk

The company maintains receivable: based financing that is designed to ensure the-company has sufficlert
-available funds for operations. Lower consumer demand for vehicles and a tightening of canditions-in the
credit markets, may adversely affect both consumer demand and the cost and ‘avaiiability ‘of finance lo the
company.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
Principal risks and uncertainties-{continued)
Interest rate cash flow risk

The company has both interest bearing assets (including cash-and short-term deposits).and interest bearing
Jiabilities, .a proportion of which: aie._a't variable rates. The directors ‘will revisit the -appropriateness. of this
policy should the.company’s operations change-in size or nature.

Currency risk
The company's operatidns are exposed to global market risks, Including the- effect of changes in foreign
currency exchange: rates and certain commodity prices.

Financial risk management

The company’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks. that include the effects of changes in credit
risk,, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The company has in- place a risk management
programme that sets out spemf‘ c guidelines to manage these risks and the circumstances where it would be
appropriate to use financial mstruments to manage these.

Statement of Corporate Governahce Arrangement

For the year ended 31 March 2020, under the Companies (Miscellaneous. Reporting) Regulations 2018, the:
company has applied the Wates Corparate Govérnance Principles for Large Private- Companies (Wates
Principles’} (published by tHe. Financial Reporting Council (‘FRC') In December 2018 and are available on.
the FRC website). The:new corporate governance reporting requirements under the Regulations apply to
companies reporting for financial years. beginning on or after 1 January 2019, The company has applied the-
Wates principles as an approprlate framework when making a disclosure regarding corporate.-governance
arrangements. The ‘company’s reporting against the Wates: prmcnples has been included below. The.
company rémains committed to ensuring effective- governance is in place to deliver its-care Values, as this is
the -foundatian’-on which it manages. and controls its business and provides- the platform for sustainable
profitability.

Section 172 Companies. Act 2006.

The Wates Corporate Govemance Principles for Large Private Companles provides ‘a. framework for the
‘company to-not only-démoristrate how the Board makes decisions for the long'term success$ of the company’
and its stakeholders, but also having regard to how the Board ensures the company. complies with the
requirements of Section 172 {1)(a) to (f) of the Companies-Act 2016.

The .Jaguar Land Rover Board provides supervision and guidance. o our management, particularly with.
respect to carporate governance, business strateg|es and growth plans. It also considers the identification of
risks and their mitigation. strategies, ‘enitry-into hew businesses; product launches, demand fulfilment and
cap:tal expendlture requirements, as'well as the review of our business plans and targets.

Examples of actiofis taken by the Board are: Reviewing and making decisions, concerning operational
planning associated with the latest ﬁve—year business plan of Jaguar Land Rover, evaluating the performance
-apainst ‘budget and forecast -and reviewing and approving potential investments. The Board is also
rasponsible: for Gverseeing the implementation -of appropriate risk assessment- processes and .controls to
identify, manage and mitigate the principal risks to the" -company. This includes. the review, ‘approval ‘and
communication of the risk-management policy-and framework.

Our reparting against the Wates Principlés for Jaguar Land Rover Automotive plc has. been ingluded below
in these financial statements as the. Directors of Jaguar Land Rover Limited consider the key decisjons made:
are consistent with those included within Jaguar Land Rover-Automotive plc accounts.

The detaiis.on how Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 has been addressed is summarised:as follows:
a} The likely consequences of any decision in -the-iong ‘term

Trie Board annually' approves the five:year bisiness plan and monitars its implementatiori throughout. the

-year. Extemal factors are also considered such as economic, political -and ongoirig challenges within the
market as a part of the five-year business. plan to ensure, both financlal and operating strategy is set at
sustainable levels to achieving the long term success of the cornpany. To further enhance- and support the
long term $trategy, the company entered into debt funding arrangerments. during the financial year,
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
Statement of Corporate Governance Arrangement (continued)
b) The interests of the company’s employees

The Directors anderstand the impartance of the company's employees. to the long-term success of the
business: The company regularly communicates to its employees through presentations, internal group-wide.
emails and newsleters. A pulse survey undertaken annually allows employees to provide feedback to further
support the long term plans of the: company. Learning and development continues o be an imiportant area
of 'support to employees through. both-training days and e- leamlng ‘modilés: internal hetworks to support
wellbeing have bsen créated to provide and create communities to discuss and share suppart on mental
heatth, general wellbeing and advice on the recent coranavirus outbreak. We pmudiy ‘support the growing’
number of active diversity and.inclusion employee—led networks such as-JLR- Pride, BAME, Gender Equality,
Disability arid a nurnber of religious groups.

c) The need to foster the company’s business r'elatio‘nships with suppliers, customers and others

The Directors understand the importance of the company‘s supply chain In delivering the long tefm plans of
the company. Trie Global Sourcmg Process (GSP) is used to identify partners with the right capability. to
support the company an hew pragrammes. Advanced Product Quality Planhing (APQP) practlces are.
deployed with Suppliers to support the development of new products, and ‘techhiques and processes.
including a-Supplier Risk Management (SRM) approach is used to assess their financial stability and ability
to provide continuous supply. Qur suppliers. of production and non-production goods and services play an
integral role in our busiriess and help us to operate globafly. The company has key objectives and principles
which are set out clearly in the Glabal Supplier Management pollcy In addition to-ensuring ethical behaviour,
sustainability and health and safety is.considered critical to the success of our business relationships.

“The Directors monitar the company's engagement with their customers through the use of various Customer,
Experience Insight tools. which helps collate feedback fiom time of vehicle purchase onwards. This process
Is run internélly-and enables both the Company. and Retailers globally to halp Improve customer engagement.
Other regular customer feedback mechanisms exist through a variety of syndicated surveys to-provide and
-offer extetnal aiid independent feedback.

The Directors actively seek Information on the- inferaction with stakeholders and employees to ensure that
they have sufficient.information to reach ajipropridte conclusuons about'the nsks faced by the company and
any appropriate action to be underteken.

d) The impact of the-oompany's operations an thie community and environment

Further information on the company’s initlatives and commitment to the environment and society through'the
Destination Zero mission can be found in the Stratégic Report on pages 2.and:3.

€) The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards. of business conduct

The'Board is supportive. of diversity in the workplace: Diversity management continues to form a coré part-of
the company’s business strategy. As part of our pledge‘to work even more-closely with. disabled people we
have joined The Valuable 500;-a global movement dedicated to ensuring disability inclusion in business. The
Valuable. 500 aims: to unlock the true potential of -people living with disabilities across the world. The Board
‘has. also approved the companys policies on antisslavery and human trafﬂcklng and’ antl-brlbery and
corruption which can all be found on the Jaguar Land Rovér Automotive plc website.

f) The need to act fairly as between members of the company

The Jaguar Land Rover Group is owned by Tata Motors Litited (*TML") and collectively are committed to
continuing to build future growth through new modeéls through a cument difficult econemic and soclal
‘environment.

Wates principle 1 — purpose and leadership

The Board of Direttors..of the company rigorously challenges strategy, performance, responsibility and
accountability so that every decision made js of the highest quality: The Board of Directors actively ensures
throughi comittee mestings of the Jaguar Land Rover Automotive pic Group and careful consideration of all
.economic, geopolitical and environmental factors that the apprapriate strategy and decisions are made.
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STRATEGIC REPORT ('C'.UNTIN UED)

Statement of Corporate Governance Arrangement (continued)

‘Wates prihciﬁle 2 - Board composition

The company continuously. evaluate the balance of 'skills, experience, knowledge and independence of the

Directors. The size and .composition of - the Board Is considered to be appropridte with all members
contnbutlng to a wide variety-of exparience.

‘Wates principle 3 — Director responsibilities

Effective risk managément is ‘central to -achieving the company’s strategic objectives and .is a- care
responsibility of the Board of Directors. The governance structure of-the Jaguar Land Rover Autombtive plc
Group, of which-the. company is -a subsldiary, .ensures good governance is achieved through effective.
committees tacking core areas of focus for the Group-and its subsidiaries on g regular basis. Details of the
committees and governance structures of the.Group are contained in the Jaguar Land Rover Automotive plc
Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Wates principle 4 — Opportunity and risk
The Board of directors have oversight of the: identification and nmifigation of risks for the company and in the

context of the company.as a subsidiary of the Jaguar Land Rover Automative plc Group. The principal tisks
of the cofnpany are set out In the strategic repart on pages 5 arid 6.

Wates principle 5 - Remuneration

The Nominations:and-Remurieration Comiittee of the Jaguar Land Rover Automotive: plc Group ensures
that appropriate senior management is recruited to deliver on the Group's objectives. The Nominations and
Remuneration Committee has clearly defined Tems. of Reference and_ s responsible for remuneration
strategy, recruitment and.:long térm incentive plans for senior executives. The composmon and role of the
Remuneration Comfilttee and policies are included in the Jaguar Land Rover Automotive plc Annual Report
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Wates principle 6 — Stakeholder relationship and engagement

The Jaguar Land Rover Aufomotive plc Board continues to’promote -accountability and transparency with all
stakeholders and shareholders and effectively communicates thie company’s strategic dlrechon Interaction
and commiunication with customers and suppliers are-set out iit the strategic report on page 7.

Maintaining strong relationships with shareholder and bond-investors Is crucial to achieving the company's
-aims.

The Strategic Report has beén approved by the Board of Directors and signed-on. its behalf by:

s S

=

K. J..Benjamin
Company Secretary.
3 November.2020

Registered Address
Abbey Road

‘Whitley

Coventry

CV3 4LF

United Kingdom
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DIRECTORS® REPORT

The ditectors present their report and: the audited-financial statements for-the campany for the year-ended.
31 March 2020. Jaguar Land Rover Limited is a private company limited by shares.

Results.and dividends

The-income statement shows a loss after tax for the financial year of’ £(656) miltion (2019: £(3,464) million
loss affer tax).

The directors do not recommend payment:of a dividend iIn respect 6f the financial results forthe yest ended
31 March 2020 {2019; £nil).

Directors

The directors. who held office during the year and subsequently to the date af this report unless otherwise
stated are.as follows:.

T.Y. H. Bolloré (appointed 10 September 2020)
F. Brauhgam

K. D. M. Gregor {resigned 1 Jurie 2019)

L. J. Harnett (resigned. 31 July 2020)

H. Kirner

A. J. Mardell (appointed 1 June-2019)

G. A. McPherson

D. Owen {appeinted 31 July.2020)

N. M..Rogers

H. B. B Sorensen (appointed 26-July.2019)
Prof Sir R. D. Speth  (resigned 10.September 2020)
‘D. M. Willlams ‘(appointed 31July 2020)

Directors’ indemnities

The company's intermediate parent, Jaguer Land Rover Aufomotive pic, maintained -direéctors™ liability
insurance for all directors-during the financial year and subsequently.

Branches

Thie company has three branches which exist and operate outside of-the UK based in the United ‘Arab
Erirates.

Going concern

The directors have completed a going concern assessment for the campany for a.period of 12 morths-from
‘the date-of appfoval of these financial statéments which indicate that, taking account of teasonably possible
downsides; the..company will have -sufficient funds through funding from .its immediate parent company;
‘Jaguar Land Rover Automotive PLC; to meet ifs liabilities as they fall due for that period.

The going concem assessment for the company: is dependent on Jaguar Land Rove¥ Automotive PLC nat
‘seeking repayment of .the amounts currently due to the group; which at.31 March 2020 amounted to £6,305
million, and:providing additional financial support during that period. Jaguar Land Rover Autormotive plc has
mdlcated its"intention to continue to make available suchi funds as are néeded. by the company, and that it
does not intend to seek repayment of the amounts due at the: balance sheef date, for the peridd covered by
‘the forecasts. As with any company placing refiance on other group éntities for financial support, the directors
acknowledge that there can be no-certainty that.this support will continue althotigh, at.the date of approval
of these financial statements, they have no reason {o believe that it will not da so.

The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in a Goverriment imposed. lockdown in March 2020 resulfing in a sharp
downturn in the, automotive Industry. Jaguar Land Rover Automotive PLC has adopted the going eoncemn
basis of preparation in its annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 ‘and Its_ nterim
financlal statements for the quarter ended 30 September 2020. The Company directors have chanenged
these forecasts and concluded ttiat Jaguar Land Rover Automotive PLC have both the abllity and intent.to
provide financial support to tfie company, even in a severe but plausible downside scenario.

Consequently, the directors are confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its
liabilities as they-falldue for at least 12 months from the: date ‘of -approval of the financial staterients and
therefore have-prepared:the financial statements on a going concern basis.



Jaguar Land.Rover Limited
Annust repert and financial sta!smanls
For thé year ended M Maroh 2020

DIRECTORS" REPORT (CONTINUED)
Business. review and future developments

A business review and future developments impacting the campany are disclosed in the. strategic report on
pages 1to 8.

Financial instrumernits

Thedisclosures required i relation to. the. use of fi nancial instruments by the company, together with detalls
‘of the.company’s treasury policy and management are set out in'nate 34 to fhe financial statémerits-oh pages
7210 84.

Research. and development

The company has incurred £1,790 million (2019: £1,997 miflion) of résearch anid development costs. during
the financial year. The company Is: compmiitted to a continuing programme of major éxpenditure-on research.
and development. Further information is included in the strategic report.

Employee engagement

Thie' company places considerable value on the involvement-of its employeés and has continued to keep
them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the various. factors affecting the performance
of the company. This is achieved through formal ‘and informal meetings: and the company magazines.
Efmployee fepresentatives are consulted regularly on a: wide fange of matters affecting their current and
future interests.

"The. directors- understand the. importance of the cofripany’s employees to the long-term success of the
business. Buiing the year, Pulse Surveys to capture-and monitor employee satisfaction along with monthly
commuriications to updaté all employees an financial performance and business; challenges experienced
“with the cornpany are uridertaken. Learhing and deveiopment courses and internal network groups to suppoit
various Interests has been encotiraged. Details of how the Jaguar Land Rover Group involves its- employees
are contalned in Our People section 6f the Jaguar L.and Rover. Automotwe plc website.

Employee information
The average number-of employees of the company s disclased in note-6 ta the financial statemients.

Thé company.is committed to a warkplace thiat Is Inclusive and values diversity. If is.the policyof the company
that the training, career- development and promiotion oppartunities for disabled people should be identical to
that.of other.employees. The company actively encourages a diversity of applicants for all job vacancies.

In the event of members of ‘staff becoiriing disabled ‘every reasanable effort Is made by the company ' to
ensure that they can continue to contribite fully within the organisation.

Apart from determining that an individual has:the ability to casry. out a particular role, the company-does not
disciiminate in any way. It endeavours 6 retain employees if they ‘become disabied, making reasonable
adjustments-to their role and, if ‘necessary, looking for redeployment opportunities-within the company. The.
company-also ensures that training, career dévelopment-and promotion opportunities are available to al),
employees imespective of gender; race, age-or disability.

Political irivolveiment and contributions

The company respects an employeé’s right to, use their own time-and resources to partlcapate as individual
citizens Iin political and goverhmental activities of ttiéir choice. The company itself operates under legal
limitations: on its-ability to engage in political activities, and even where there are no legal restrictions, the.
company does not typically make. contribtitions ‘ta political candidates or political parlies or permit
campaigning on its property by-political -candidates (including those who work for theé company) or persons
"working on their behalf. There have not been any politicat donatiohs in any of the periods. covered by these
financial statements.

Slavery and hurian trafficking statement

Pursuant to- Section 54 of the Modem Slavery-Act 2015; the company has published a Slavery and Human
Trafficking Statement for the year ended 31 March:2020. The Statement sets out the steps that the. company
hastaken to address the risk of slavery and human traffi cklng aceurting within its own operations and its
supply chains. This statement can be found on the. company’s carporate website.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
Events after the balance -sheet date

Full details of significant events since the balance sheet date aré disclosed in note 40 fo the financial
statements. on page-90.

independent-auditor

Inaccordance with Section:487 of the:Companies Act 2006, the company has elected to dispense with laying:
tinancial statements before the general. meeting, holding annual genheral meetings and the annual
appountment of the auditor: With. such an election in force the company's auditor shall be deemed to’ be re-
appointed for each succeeding financial year in accordance with Section 485 of the Act,

Statement of disclosure of information to auditor

In the case of each of the persons who are directors at the time when.the report is approved under Section.
418 of the Compames Act, 2006 the following applies:

o so faras the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information ‘of which the company’s
auditor Is uhaware; and

‘= the directors have taken necessary actions in order to make the’msel\t’e’s -aware of any relevant audit.
information and to establish that the ‘company's-auditor is aware:of that information. '

The Directors’ Report.was approved, by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

T
K. J. Benjamin
Caompany Secretary

3 November 2020.

Registered Address
Abbey Road

Whilley

Caventry

CV3 4LF

United Kingdom
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, ‘the Dirsctors' Report and the financial
'statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

-Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.- Under that law
they heive elected to prepare the financial statements-in accordance: with International Financial Reporllng
Standards as adopted. by the European Union (IFRSs.as adopted. by‘the EU) and applicable lai.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied. that
they.give.a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the: company
for that pericd. In preparing these financial statements the directors are required:to:

«: select suitable accounting palicies and-then, apply them consistently;
« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;
» state whether they have been prepiared In accordance with IFRSs as-adopted by the EU;

« assess the company's ability to.continue as a goihg concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related’
to going concern; and

o uUse the going.concem basis, of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the.company or to cease-
-operations, or have na reahsuc alternative-butto.do so.

The directors.are responsible for: keeping adequate-accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
‘the company’s transactlons-and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the-financial positicn of the.
company and.enable them to ensure that-the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008.
They are responsible for suchi internal control as ‘they detérmine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statéments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or-error, and have-general
responsibility for taking such-steps ds are reasonably open to theim to safeguard the assets of the company
-and to prevent and detect fraud arid other irregularities:

The directors are responsible for the mamtenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included onthe company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing lhe preparation-and dissemination of
financial statements may dlffer from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JAGUAR LAND
ROVER LIMITED

Opinion

"We have“audited the financial statements of Jaguar Land Rover Limited (‘the company”) for the year ended
31 March 2020 which-comiprisé the Income Staternent, Staterent.of Comprehensive incoms, Balance Sheet,
Statement of Changes in-Equity, Cash Flow Statément and related notes, including the accounting. policies
in note 2,

Inour opinion the financial statements:

o give a true and fair view of the state.of the company’s affairs as at 31.March 2020 and of its. Joss for the
year then ended;

o have been properly prépared in accordance with Intetnational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union; and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the.Companies-Act.2006.

Basis for opinion

We: conducted our atidit in accordance with International Standards. on Audmng (UK) (*ISAs (UK)") and

"applicable law. Qur responsibilities are described below. We have fuffilled our ethical responsibilities under;

and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethlca!

‘Standard. We believe that the audit evidénce we. have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
“opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the. ﬂnancnal statements. en the going cancern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the cormpany or fo cease- its: operations, and as they have concluded that the cormpany’s fi nancial
position means that this is realistic. They have also cancluded that there are no'material- uncertainties that
could have cast significant ‘doubt: over its ability to continue-as a going concem for at least'a year from the
date of approval of the financial statements (“the- going concern -period™):

We are required to report to you if we have condluded that the use of the going concem basis of-accounting
is inapprapriate of there is an.undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use
of that basis for a period_of at least a year from the ‘date .of approval.of the financial statements. In our.
-gvaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks-to. the company's pusiness:-model
and analysed how those risks might:affect the company’s financial resources or-abliity to continue operations
over the going concem pefiod: We:-have nothing to report in these respects.

‘However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in
outcomes that-are- inconsistent with judgements that were reasonasble af the time they: were made, the
absence of reference to a material unceftalnty in this atiditor's report.is not a guarantee that the company will
continue in operation.,

Strategic report and directors’ report.

The directors are responsnble for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our-opinion on the fi hancial
statements does not cover those repofts and we do.not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors™ report and, in doing so, consider whether,
based.on our financial statemerits audit work, the information therein is materiafly misstated or inconsistent:
With. the financial statements or our audit knowledge.- Based solely on tiiat work:

o ‘we have notidéntified material misstatements in the.strateglc report and the directors! report;

 in oyr dpinion the-informaiion given inthose reports for-the financlal year is consistent with the firiariclal
statements; and

o in our opinion those reports have beeri prepared in accordance with the Companies: Act:2006.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF JAGUAR LAND ROVER
LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 12, the directors are responsible for. the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such intemal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related. to going concern;.and using the going concern basis of
accounting uniess they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect 3 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller descripton of our responsibilities is providled on the FRC's website at
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Oy

Gordon Docherty (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

One Snowhill

Snow Hill Queensway

Birmingham

B4 6GH

United Kingdom

4 November 2020
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INCOME STATEMENT

. i

Revenue. 4 19,849 20,870
Material-and other cost of sales 5 (13,173}  (14,038)
Employee costs 6 (2,217)  [2,488)
Other expenses 9 (4,399) (4,549)
Exceptional items 3 (137)  (3.242)
Engineering costs- capitallsed 10 1,369 1,576
Other income 122 112
Depreciation:and amortisation (1,824) (2,099)
Foreign exchange loss .and fair value. adjustments. (198) (65)
Finance income; 11 106 176
Finance expense (net) 11 (206) (125)
Loss before tax ‘ {708) (3,872)
Income tax credit 13 52 408
Loss for the year (656)  (3,464)

All the-activities of the company are from .continuing qperatfons.

The notes on'pages 19 o 90 are an integral pa‘rt-:of‘the’se-ﬁhancial'statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENSE

fYedriends Marchi(E millions

(656)  (3,464)

Loss for the year

Items that will-not be reclassified. subsequently to profit and loss:

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 31 981 (268)

Gain/(loss) on effective cash flow hedges of inveritory 75. (197)

Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified 18, {180) 74
' 876 (391)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss:

Gain on cash flow hedges (net) 229 83

income fax related to itams that may be reclassified , 18 (42) (18)

187 75
Other comprehiensive income/{expense) net of tax ' 1,083 {(316)
Total:comprehensive incomef(expense) attributable to shareholder 407  (3,780)

The notes on pages 1910 90.are.an integral pait of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET

1 As at 31 March (€ mlilions) Note 2020 - 2019
Non-current assets
Investments 14 1,140 1,079
Other financial assets 15 246 159
Property, plant & equipment 16 5,707 5,537
Intangible assets 17 6,016 5,440
Right-of-use assets 35 291 -
Pension asset 31 408 -
Deferred tax asset 18 - 69
Other non-current assets 22 21 83
Total non-current assets 13,829 12,367
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 19 1,869 2,465
Short-term deposits and other investments 1,326 1,028
Trade receivables 1,118 2,168
Other financial assets 15 2,167 1,629
Inventories 21 1,984 1,818
Other current assets 22 309 360
Total current assets 8,773 9,468
Total assets 22,602 21,835
Current liabilitles
Accounts payable 23 4,738 5,413
Short-term borrowings 24 3,779 3,631
Other financial liabilities 25 957 925
Provisions 26 780 868
Other current liabilities 27 148 153
Total current liabllities 10,402 10,990
Non-current liabilitles
Long-term borrowings 24 4,818 3,599
Other financial liabilities 25 497 283
Provisions 26 1,140 1,008
Retirement benefit obligation 31 - 640
Other non-current liabilities 27 158 164

__Deferred tax liabilities 18 65 -
Total non-current liabilities 6,678 5,694
Total liabilities 17,080 16,684
Equilty attributable to shareholder
Ordinary share capital 28 3,561 3,561
Other reserves 29 1,961 1,590
Equity attributable to shareholder 5,522 5,151
Total llabilities and equity 22,602 21,835

The notes on pages 19 to 90 are an integral part of these financial statements.
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 3 November

2020. They were signed on its behalf by:

-

H. Kimer
Director
Company registered number: 01672070
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance at 1:April 2019 -3y 1,590 5,151

Adjustment.on initial application of IFRS 16 (net of

tak) ' ) - &) (9)
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2019 3,561 1,581 5,142

Loss for the year - (656) {656)
Other-comprehensive income for the year - 1,063 1,063

Total comprehensive income - 407 407

Amounts refaved fror hedge reserve and - } (33) (33)

recognised in inventory

income tax reldted to arriounts removed from
hedge reserve and fecognised in inventory
Balance af 31 March 2020 3,561 1,961 5,522

.BaAI'arice‘ at 1 April 2018 3,561 5,500 9,061
Adjustment-an initial application of IFRS 9 and 3 @1) (31)
IFRS 15 (net of tak)

Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018 3,561 5,469 9,030
‘Loss for the year - (3,464) (3,464)
Other comprehensive. expense for the year - (316) (316)
Total comprehensive éxpense ‘ {3,780) {3,780)
-Amqup‘t,s remgvedjrqm. hedge reserve and . (122) (122)
recognised in inveritory

‘Income-tax related 16 amounts removed from. ) 23 23
hedge reserve and recognised in inveritory > '
Balance at 31 March 2019 3,561 1,590 ‘5,151

The notes-on pages 19 to 30 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash generated from operations 37 1,741 1,544
Income tax paid (9) (14)
Net cash getierated from operating activities 1,732 1,530
Cash flows used in investing dctivities .
Investnient In-subsidiaries and equity-accounted invéstments. (79) (6)
tnvestrent in. other restricted deposits- (21) (28)
Redemption of other restricted deposits 20 27
Movements in other restricted deposits (1) (1)
Investment in short-term deposits and other investments (3,943) (2,437)
.Redemption of shortterrh deposits and other investments 3,659 3,491
Movements in short-term depaosifs.and other lnvestments: (284) 1,054
Purchases of property, plant and equipritent (1,161) (1,236)
Proceeds from sale-of praperty, plant and equipment 1 -
Net cash outflow relafing to intangible asset expenditure {1,502) (1,777)
Finance income. received 62 46
Dividerids received 35 11
Net cash used in investing activities {2,929) (1,909)
Cash flow generated from financing activities

Finance expenses and fees paid ' (262), ‘(220)
Proteeds from issuance of short-term borrowings 1,850 2,179
Repayment of short:term borrowings (1,785) (1,840)
Proceeds from'issuance of long-term barrowings 1,600 1,214.
Repayment of long-term borrowings 824) (547)
Payments. of lease -obligations : (50) 2)
Net cash generated from financing.activities 529 784
Net (decrease)iincrease in cash and cash equivalents (668) 405
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning-of year 2,465 2,087
Effect of foreign éxchangeonh. cash arid cash equivalents 72: (27)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,869 2,465

The notes on pages. 19 to 90:are an integral part of these financlal statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 BACKGROUND AND OPERATIONS

The company's ‘principal activity during the year was the design, development, manufacture and marketing
of high performance luxury saloons, specialist sports cars, four-wheel drive off-road vehicles and related
components.

The company is a limited company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom: The address of its
registered office is Abbey Road, Whitley, Coventry, CV3 4LF, United Kingdom: The company is ‘an indirect
subsidiary of Tata Motors Limited, India (‘Tata.Motors Limited’).

These financial statements have been: prepared.in Pound Steriing (GBP) and rounded ‘to the nearast million
(£:million) unless otherwise stated.

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have beén preparéd in accardance with Itemational Financiat Reporting
Standards: (IFRSs) and IFRS. Intefpretation Cornmittee Interpretatlons as adopted by the European Uniion

(EU) and the requirements of the United Kingdom Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS.

The company is.exempt from prepating consolidated group financial statements under Section- 400 of.the
Companies Act-2006 and therefore these financial statements contain information'about the company and
not its group. The. company: is included .in the consolidated financial statements of Jaguar Land Rover.
Autofriotive plc which are available ffom the company’s registered office.

BASIS OF PREPARATION.
The financial statements. haveé been prepared on a historical- cost basis .except for certain ‘financial

instruments which aré measured at fair value. Historical cost Is generally based on the fair- value of the
-consideration given in exchange for the assets. The priricipal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

GOING-CONCERN

The financial staternents have been preparéd on a:goirig concern basis which the directors consider to be
.appropriate for the following reasons.

The directors have completed a going concem assessment-for the Company for a period of 12 monhths from
the date of approval of these financial statements which indicate that, taking account of reasonably pessuble
downsides, the. Company will have sufficient.funds through funding from its intermediate parerit company,
Jaguar Land Rover Automotive PLC, to meet its liabilities as'they fall due-for that penod

The going concem assessment for the Company is dependent on Jaguar Land Rover Automotive PLC not
seeking repayment of the.amounts currently due,. directly or indifectly, to the group and providing additional
financial support during that period. See note 38 for the breakdown. of liability: positions with fellow-group
undertakings-at 31 March 2020.

Jaguar.Land Rover Automotive PLC has indicated its intention to continue to-make available such funds as
are-needed by the: compariy, and that it does hot intend to seek repayment of the amounts.due at the balance
shest date where the entity has insufficient liquidity to-make such payrments, for the perlod covered by the
forecasts. As with any company placing reliance ori other group entities for financial support, the directors
acknowledge that there can be no certainty that this suppoit will continue although at the date of approvail
of these fihancial statéments, they have no reason to-believe that it will not'do so.

“The. COVID 19 panderiic resulted in @ Government imposed lockdown in March 2020 resulting in a- sharp
downturn in the autoniotive industry. Jaguar Land Rover Automotive PLC has adopted the going cericern
basis of preparation Inits annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020. The Company
directors have challenged these forecasts and.concluded that Jaguar Land Rover Automotive PLC have both
the ability and intent to provide financial support to the company, even in a severe but plauslble ‘downside

scenario.
Consequently, the directors are confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet ifs
liabilities as they fali due for at least 12 months from the: date of approval of the financial statements and
therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern'basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEDY)

2  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

USE.OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The, prepar‘atlon of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of judgements, estimates
and -assumptions that affect.the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the :date of the financial
statements: and the reported amounts:of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Those which
are significant to' the company are discussed separately below:

Impact.of COVID-19

The company has exercised its judgment in evaluating the impact of COVID-19 on the financial statements
in response to the rapidly developing environmenit during the panidemic. A number of areas. have. been.
identified as being relevant for-consideration,-and are discussed below as: part of the company’s assessment.
of accounting estimates and judgments, and whers required; referenced further within the specific note:

o Revenue recognition, see note 2;

. Taxation, see-note13;

. Impairment of tangible and intangibie fixed assets; see notes 16 and 17;
. Variable marketing expénse, see.note 2;

. Inventory valuation, see note 21;

. Product warranty, see note 26;

. Employee benefits, see note 31;

. Recoverability of receivables, see note 34;

. Hedging, see note 34;

Capitalisation of product engineering costs, see note 2;.
Judgements.

In the process of applying. the. company's accounting pollcles management has made the following
judgemerits, which have the most'significant effect on the-amounts recognised in the financial statements.

"Revenue.recognitior

Vehicle revenue, as the primary source of income-for the.company, Is recognised when control of the vefiicle
passes to the customer, which the company has assessed is when the vehicle is either despatched.or held.
on behalf of the customer. but- depends ‘on the underlying terms of the customer contract. Caritrel of an asset
refers fo having the ability to direct the use of the asset and’ obtaln substantially all of the remaining-economic
benefit.

The transfer of cantrol depends on the consideration of a' number of facts and circumstances surrounding
the relevant transaction, such as the transfer of risks and rewards. of ownership, transfer of legal title, transfer
of physical possession, customer acceptance and whether or not an-entity has a present right to payment,
The.-company determines the transfer of conitrol with reference 1o those factors, thus ultlmately driving
revenue recognition.

In some.instancas, the company recognises revenue on a bill-and-hold: basis where control of the vehicle
has been trarisferred to the-customer but physical possession is retained by the company (for example, within
a vehicle holding compound) until a-future- peint in time. Revenue is recognised on the meeting of bill-and-
hold criteria, which aré considered to be met as the reason for the bill-and-hold is substantive (as the
customer requests JLR to retain possession, usually duefo a lack of ava:lable space at thelr own premisgs),
the vehicles. are 'identifiable as separately belonging to the customer (on the basis that each vehicle hias a
unique Vehicle identification Number), the viehicle must be ready for physlcal transferto the customer (which
itis, given that it'is fully built and safety-checked off the manlifacturing fine) and the company dosgs not have
the ability to use the:vehicle or direct it elsewhere.
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USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS {CONTINUED)

Capitalisation-of product enginsering cosis

The company ‘undertakes - srgnlf cant lévels of research and -development activity, and for each vehicle
programime a perlodlc review is Undertaken. The company applies judgement in determining at'what point in
a vehicle programme’s’ life cycle the reoognmon criferia under 'IAS. 38 are satisfied and estimates the.
proportlon of central overhead allocated. If a later point had been used then this-would have had the impact

of reducing the amounts- capitalised as product engineering costs: [f-central overheads had. not been
allocated it would have reduced the amaunt capitalised by £117 million.

The: company reviewed its ‘methiodolody in line. with. the :apphcable -aqcounﬁng standards to -ensure it
continues to meet'the criteria for. capitalising such, costs in an.environment impacted by COVID-19 to assess
that the Incrermental benefits expected continue to-exceed the assaciated costs.

Deferred tax asset recognition

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability that
future taxable income wilt be available against which the deductible: temporary differences and tax loss carry-
forwards can be utilised. In addition, sxgnlﬁmnt]udgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or
economic limits or uncertainties in various tax ‘Jurisdictions.

Estirmates -and assumptions

The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant o the financial statements are as described
below. The estimates and assoclated assumptions are based on historicai experience and various other
factors that are believed to. be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basls 6f
making the jJudgements about carrying values of assets and Jiabllities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates:

Significant esfimates are those thathave a signlﬂcant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the cafrying
amounts of assets -and fiabilities. wfthm the next year. Other estimates are those that may afféct carfying
amounts in the longer term.

Significant estimates
Impairment of Intangible and tangible fixed assets

The company tests annually whether indefinite iived intangible fixed assets have siiffered any impaitment
The recoverable-amount of the- cash—generatlng unitis based on the highier of value in use and the fair value
fess cost of disposal. Value in use Is calculated from cash flow projections generally over five years using
data fram the latest.internal forecasts and extrapolated beyond five yeais using estimatéd long-term growth
rates. Key assumptions and sensitivities for impairmenit are disclosed in note 17.

Retirement benefit obligation

The present value of the post-employment benefit obligations: depends-on a number of factors that are
determined-on an actuarial.basis. using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining’the.
net cost/(mcome) for pensions include the discount rate, iriflatiori- and mortality assumptions.. Any changes in
these assumptions will Impact upon the carryihg -amoiint of post-employment ‘benefit obligations. Key
assumptions and sensitivities for post-employment benefit obligations are disclosed In note 31.

Other estimates
Product warranties

The company provides product warranties on all new vehicle sales. Provisidns are generally. recognised
when vehicles are-spld or when new warranty programs-are initiated. Based .on historical warranty claim
experience, assumptions have to be made on the type and exteit of future warranty claims and customer
goodwill (representing the company's constructive obligation to its-customers.when managing those warranty
claims), as well .as on possible:recall campaigns These assessiments are based on expérienge-of the
frequency and extent of vehicle faults and defects in the past. In addition, the estimates also include.
assump'uons on the amounts of potential repair costs per-\ Vehlcle and the éffects of; possible time or mileage
limits. The provisions are regularly adjusted to reflect new information. Refer to note 26.
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The company also has back-fo-back.contractual arrangements- with its supgliers-in the event that a vehicle
fault is proven:to be a supplier's fault. Estimates are-made.of the expected reimbursement claims based
upon historical levels.of recoveries by supplier, adjusted for inflation.and applied-to the population of vehicles
under warranty at the balance shest date. Supplier-reimbursement claims are presented-as separate assets.
in note 15.

The compaity notes ‘that changes in. the automofive environment; regarding the increasing impact-of battery
electric vehicles presents its own sighificant challenges particularty due to the lack of historical data available
atthis time to help inform estimates for. future wartanty claims, as well as any assocnated recoveries from:
suppliers due to-such claims. The related provisions are therefore made with the company’s best-estimate at
this time to settle such obligations In the‘future but-will bé required to-be continually réfined as- -sufficient, real-
world data becomes available. Supplier recoveries are recognised only when the company considers there-
to be virtua) certainty over the reimbursement; which ajso-requires historical evidence fo support.

Variable rharketing expense

The company offers sales incentives’in. the.form. of variable market:ng expense to customers, which vary
depending on the timing and customer of - -any subsequent.sale.of the vehicle. This .sales incentive is
accourited for-as a revenue reduction and is constrained to a.level that is highly probable not to-reverse the
amount of revenue recognised - when any associated uncertainty is subsequehtly resolved. The company
estimates the expected sales-incentive by market and considers uncertainties including coripetitor pricing,
ageling.of dealer stock and local market conditions, The constraint on vajlable consideration is estimated with
reference to historical accuracy, the current position- of market condttions and a future-looking-assessment’
conslderlng relevant: .geapolitical factars, including. the' impact of the global stockpositions for both ‘the
company .and its third party dealer network reflecting the. pipeline of vehicle. inventory for sale to end
customers.

.REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the consideration earned by the Company in respéct of the output of its: ardinary
-activities; It is measured based onthe cansideration specified in the contract with the'customer and excludes
.amaounts, mllected on behaif of third parties, and fet of settlernent discounts, bonuses, febates and sales
incentives. The.Company considers Its primary customers from the sale of vehicles, parts and accessories
(its primary revenue-generatmg streams) are generally retailers, flest-aiid corparate customers; and other
distributors, including its fellow subsidiaries of the Jaguar [arid Rover Automotive-plc group. The Company
recognises revenue when ft transfers control of a good or service to a customer, thus evidencing the
satisfaction of the associated performance. obligation-under that contract.

‘As. described in note 36, the Company operates with a smgle automotive reporting segmeht, principally
genemhng revehue from the sales of vehicles, parts and accessorjes.

The sale of vehicles.also can include additional services provided to the customer at the point of sale, for
which'the individusl vehicle- and services are accounted foras separate performance obllgations, as they are
considered separately |denhf|able The. contract transaction price is “allocated. among the identified
‘performance obligations based.on their stand-alone selling prices. Where the stand-alone. selling price. i niot
readily available and‘observable,_lt is estimated using an appropriate alternative -appioach.
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Slgnmcant
Revenue Areas

fpayment terms .o

g ::a‘ﬁa:'::gggnifzéaiﬁt

Vehicles, parts;
and . accessories
{and other goods)

The Company recognises revenue on the sale of veblcles, parts and accessories at

he point of “wholesale”, which is determined by the underlying terms and.conditions

of the contract with fhe’ customer as to when control transfers to thém. The-overall
prtncuple of cantral under IFRS 15 considers which party- -has the ability to direct the
use of amr asset and to obtain substantially.all of the remiaining economic benefits.

Determining the transfer of control with regards to the sale of goods is diven by a
considerafion-of a number of factors, including:

= The polint at which the risks and rewards’ of ownership pass to the cusfomer;

= The point.at which the custamer takes physical possession of the good.or product;
* The. point at which the custémer accepts the good or-product;

+The point at which'the Company has a present right to payment for the sale of the
good or product; and,

« The point at which legal title'to the goad or product transfers.to the customer.

In the vast majority of cases, the sale of the relevant.good Is recognised at the point
.of dispatch (at release to.the carrier responsible for transpor'ta'tion tothe customer) or
‘the point of delivery to the custormer, which coincides with the invoicing point. In some

instances, revenue may be recogriised on a, bill-and-hold basis where vehicles, for
example, are.sold to the customer. buit are retained in the Company’ s,possession ata
vehicle. holding compound ‘on behalf of the customer ahead of being physically
transferred to them at a future.time. Such arrangements meet the criteria for bill-and-
hold arrangements under IFRS 15 to ensure. that the custémer has:obtained the
ultimate control of the product when revenue is recagnised. The reason for the bill-
and-Hold is substantive (as the: customer requests JLR to retain’ possession, usually
due to a lack of avallable space at their own premises), the vehicles.aré identifiable
as separately belonging to-the- customer-(on the basis that each vehicle has a.unique
Vehicle Identification Number), the vehicle. must be ready for physical transfer to ttie
custorner (which itis, given thatit is fully-built and.safety-checked off the manufacturing
line):and the Company does not have thé abllity to use the vehicle :or difect it
elsewhere:

The Company -operatés with' a financing partner-that provides wholesale financing
arrangements to the retail network for vehicle sales, which enables cash settiement to
occur immediately (usually withiri two workifig.days) for purchases from the Company.
For the sale of parts and accessories, the Company typically receives payment in lirie

‘with the invoice payrent terms stipulated and agreed with its custarmers, which -are

usually 30 days..
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2

Significant -

Revenug Areas:

++ Natisre;: timifg: of ‘satisfagtion. o

efformance’ obligations, iand -sighifigant

payment torins:

Sales incentives

In accordance with IFRS 15, the costs associated with provicj_:’ng: sales support and’
incentives (variable marketing expenss) are corisidered to be variablé components of
consideration, thus reducing the amount of revenue recognised by the Company,
Under IFRS 15, the Company efisures-that variable:consideration.is retognised to the
extent of the amount to which it ultimately expects to be entitied.

To.meet this principle, the: Company constrains: its: estimate of variable consideration
to ihclude-amounts-only to the-extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will :not occur when the uncertainty
associated with such variability is subseguently resolved. _

The Company considers that the: variable consideration received for contracts with'
multiple performance obligations is allocated to all ‘such obligationsl only when.
applicable. in thé vast majority of instances, the Company- considers that variable
components of cansideration are allocated only to the relevant and applicable:
perfarmance .obligations. For example, with the sale of -a vehicle, the cost of the
incentive pravided is allocated entirely to the vehicle as-its purpose is to. incentivise.

the.saleof the vehicle.

Service
arrangements

The Company’s- primary service arrangements relate to' scheduled maintenance
ccontracts and telematics services. As separatély identifiable performance obligations,
a standalone. selling price is esfimated using. an appropriate. method (i.e. using
observable market prices or a suitable altemative method, for example, cost-plus
margin), with revenue recognised in line With an appropriate cost pattern.

'Warranty

considerations
as a service,

Veliicles and parts sold.by the Company include a standard warranty to guarantee the
vehicfe camiplies with agreed-upon specifications for a defined period of time.

Where the warranty offering to the end. customer exceeds the standard market
expectation for similar products; or is considered. to provide a service to the end
customer in excess of simply providing assurance that the agreed-upan specification
is met, the'Company consider-the -additional warranty to constitute a-setvice to the
end customer and therefore a:separate performance obligation.

Revenue is oniy recognised ln‘tb:e period te which the warranty service relates, up-to
which point it is recognised as a coritract liability..
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Revenue Areds: . 'payment termis

tifiibiig: of- satlsfaction- omlanceobligat;on

Repurchase.
afrangements

-Some contracts with customers include an option or abligation for the. Company to

repurchiase the product sold (including repurchasing a product origmally sold as part

-of an amended product).

Such instances are common in the Company's arrangements with third-party fleet

‘custoimiers or in.confract manufacturing afrangements that the Company Is party to,

for.example.

The Conipany does hot recognise revenue on the criginal sale;.as in such casas itis
cansidered to retain ultimate contro! of that product. The related Iriventory therefore
cantinues to bé recognised-on theé Company’s balance sheet and the consideration
received. from the customer is treated as a liability: Nuances in the accounting
treatment occur depéending on whiether the contractual repurchase price'is less than,
more thar or equal to thé original -sale price, and ‘this ultimately results in the
arrangement being: treated as a lease or a financing arrangement.

If considered to be a lease arrangement, where the repurchase price is.lower than the

-orlginal sale price, the difference between the proceads received and the re_purchase"

amount is recognised as income over the contractual term on a straight-line basis.
Revenue recognised under such arrangements is outside-of the scope of IFRS 15:and
instead is.recognised in line:with IAS 17 Leases:
Revenueis recognised.only'whien the relevant good er productis soid by the Company
with o repurchase obligation or-option attached.

Non-cash
‘consideration

In seme instances, the: Gompany engages' in transactions ‘that invalve non-cash
consideration, where a customer provideé consideration:in-a form other than cash.
This'ls most often demonstrated in'marketing and sponsorship afrangements that the
Company enters into, with an exchange of gbods and/or services with its customers:

‘Such .noh-cash -consideration is measired at its- fair vaiue, which Is determined by
-assessing the selling price value of the gogds or sefvices received as consideration:

If this cannot be reasonably estimated, then the Company measures such

‘consideration indirectly with reference-to the standalone. selling ‘price of the goods or

services promised to the customer:
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2  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

COST RECOGNITION

Costs and éxpenses are recognised when incurred and are- classified according to their nature.
Expenditures are capitalised, where.appropfiate, in accordance ‘with the. .policy for internally generated

intanglble assets and represent employee costs, stares and other manufactunng supplies, and other
expenses incurred for product development undertaken by the company.

Material and other cost of sales are reported in the income statement is presented net of the impact of the
realised foreign exchange relating to derivative. hedglng cost exposiires,

GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND INCENTIVES

Governiment grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the compariy will comply with
the relevant conditions and the grant will be-received.

Government grants are recognised I the income statement, either ona systemattc basis when the company
recognises, as expenses, the related costs that the grants-are intended to.compensateor, lmmediately, if the
costs have already been incurréd.

Govemment:grants related to assets are deducted from the cost of the asset-and anortised-over the useful
life of the asset. Government grants related to income are. presented -as ‘an offset against tHe related
,expendlture, and government grants that are awarded as incentivés with no ohgoing performance obligations
‘tothe company are recognised as other income in the period in which the-grant is received.

Sales tax incentives received from -governments are recognised in the income statement at the reduced tax
rate, and revenie is reported net of these sales fax incentives.

FOREIGN CURRENCY
The-cormpany has a functional and presentation gurrency.of GBP.

Transactions in-foreigh currencies are recorded at the exchangeé: rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Foreign currency dencrninated monetary assets:and liabilities are. remeasured Into the functional currency at
the exchange rate prevailing on-the balancé sheeét date. Exchange differences are. recognised in the income’
statement &s ‘Foreign exchange. (loss)/gain and fair value. adjustments’.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional items are-disclosed separately in the income statement to-enhance the reader's understandlng
of the performance-of the-.company by excluding items that would otherwise distort reporting of the company's
performance due to their:size or nature:

Thie following are incliaded in the company's assessment of exceptional items:

+ An‘impairient charge of £108 million for the:year: ended 31 March 2020 following an Impalrment exercise
undertaken in accerdance with IAS36. Further details are given in note 17;

* Restructuring costs of £29 million during the year -ended 37 March 2020 relating to the restructuring
programmé that comrnenced diring the year ended 31 March 2019;

» Ari impairmefit charge of £3,089 millfon for the year-ended 31 March 2019 following an impairment exercise
undertaken in accordance with IAS 36. Further detalls are given in riote 17;

« Restructiring costs of £136.millfon relating 1o a- company restructuring programme annsunéed and carried
out during the year ended 31 March 2019; and

+'Apast service cost of £17 million foltowing a High Court ruling.in October 2018 that pension schemes are
‘required to equalise malé and. female-members’ benefits for the inequalities within guaranteed minimum
pension’ {GMP') eamed betwsen 17 May 1890 and 5 April 1997. The company historically made no’
assumptions for GMP ahd therefore considered the change to be a plan amiendment. Further details are.

given in note 31.

Further details of exceptional items are given.in note 3.
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INCOME TAXES

Income.tax experise- comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax- expense js recognised in the income:
statement, eéxcept when they relate to items that are recognised outside -profit or loss {whether in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity; whereby tax is also recognised outside profit or loss):

Current incoms taxes are detefwriined based on respective taxablée income of each -taxable entity and tax
tules applicable for respective tax jurisdictions.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities afe recognised for the future tax consequences. of ternporary differences
between the.cayrying values of assets and liabilities and thelr respective tax bases, and unutilised business:
loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets.are recogmsed to the-extent that
it is.probable that future taxable income will be available against which the- deductible ternporary dlfferenoes

unused tax losses, depreciation. carry—forwards and unused tax credits could be: utilised.

Defeired tax assets and liabilities are measured based onthe tax rates that are expected:to apply in thé year
when the asset'is realised or the liabilify-is settied, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities -are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set-aff current tax.
assets against current tax liabliities and. when they refate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the company intends to seftle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. :

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Propefty, plant and equipment is stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation
less-accumulated impairment, if:any: Land is.not depreciated.

Cost includes. purchase price, non-recoverable taxes.and dutiés, labour cost and direct overheads for self-
coristructed assets-and ofher direct costs.incurred up to the-date the asset is ready for its:intended use.

Interest.cost incurred for constructed assets is caprtallsed up to the date the asset is ready for its intended
use, based on borrowings incurred specifically. for financing the asset or the weighted average rate of all
other borrowings, if no specific borrowings have been.incurred for the asset.

Depreciation is provided on a siraight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the' assets. Estimated
useful lives of the assets are as-follows:

;Glagsiofiproperty iplant and:eqiiipmei stimated igefallife {year
Buildings and leased assets 20:to 40
Plant and equipment 31030
Vehicles 3to 10
Computers 3to6
Furniture and fixtures 31020

The depreciation for property, plant and equipment with finite useful lives is reviewed.at least at-each. year
end. Changes In expected useful Jives are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Assets held under finance leases :are depreciated over their expected .useful lives on the.same basis a5’
owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the rélevant lease. Freehiold land is measured at costand is not.
depreciated. Residual values are re-assessed-an ari annual basls.

Depreciation is not recarded on assets; under: construction until construction and installation are complete
and the asset Is réady for its intended use. Assets under construction 'ir'u:lu‘de capital advances. Depreciation
is.not recorded on heritage-assets as the company considefs their residual value to approximate their cost.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Acquired intangible assets

Intanglble assets purchased, including those acquired in business combinations, are measured at acquisition:
cost which is'the fair value on.the date of acquisition, where applicable, less accumulated amortisation and-
accumulated’ Jmpalrment if any. intangible-assets with mdef‘ nite lives are reviewed .annually to determine
whether an indefinite-life assessment continues fo. be’ suppoﬂable If not. the chahge in the -useful-iife
assessment from indefinite to firiite is made on a prospectlve basis:
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For intangible assets with finite lives, amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over the esfimated
useful lives of the acquired Intangible assets as per the amortisation periods below:

Sotwere R T}

Goodwill Indefinite life.
__Intéltectual property rights and othér intangibles 3.to’indefinite

The amortisation for intangible asséts with finite useful lives js reviewed at least at each year qnd. Changes
in expected useful lives are treated as:changes in accounting estimates.

Capital work-inprogress- includes capital advances. Intellectual property righits ‘and other intangibles mainly
consist.of brand names, which are-considered to have indefinite lives due-to the longevity of the brands.

Internally generated intangible assets

Prodyct engineering costs incurred on new vehicle platforins, engines, transmissions and new products are
recognised as intangible..assets — when féasibility- has been established, the ‘company has committed
technical, financial and other resolirces to complete-the developriient and it is probable that the asset will
generate futtre economic.beriefits.

The costs capitatised include the cost of materials, direct abour and directly ‘atfributable dverhead
expenditure incurred upto the date the assetis available for use.

Interest cost incurred is capitalised up to the'date the-assets ready for-its intended use, based on borrowings
incuried specifically-for financing the asset or the weighted average rate of all other borrowings, if no specific
borrowings have been incuired for the asset.

Product engmeeﬁng cost is amartised over the life:of the related product being a period of between two. and
ten years.

‘Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less accurnulated amortisation and accumutated
impairment loss, if any.

Amiortisation is not récorded on product engineering.in progress until development is complete.
IMPAIRMENT
Property, plant.and equipment and other intangible assets.

At-each balance sheet date, the.company assesses whether there is any indication that any praperty, ‘plant
and -equipment and intangible assets. may be impalred. i ary such |mpa1rment indlcator- éxists, the
recoverable amount of-an asset Is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. ‘Where it is not
possible to estimate-the recoverable-amount of an individual asset, the. company estimates.tfie recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which-the asset belangs. '

Intangnble assets with indefinite useful fives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
“impairment annually, or earlier if there is ani indication that the asset may be- impaired.

The estimated recoverable amount'is the higher of value in use and fair value less cosfs of dispasal. In
assessing value in use; the estimated future-cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pré-tax
discount rate that reflects: current market assessmeénts of the time value of money: and the risks specific to
the asset (or cash-generating unif) for which.the: estimates of future cash flows have. not been adjusted.

If the recoverablé amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is ‘estimated to be less than its .carrying
-amount, the: carrylng aimount of the asset (ar cash-generatmg unlt) is reduced to its recoverable amiount: An
impairment loss is recagnised lmmednately in.the income statement.

An -annuat impairment review for heritage assets is performed as the assets. are held at. cost and not
depreciated and any impairment in:the. carrying value is: recognised Immediately in the income- statement.

CASH AND. CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and.highly liquid investmenits with an
-orlglnal miaturity of up to-three manths that are readity convertible ifto kriown amounts of ¢ash-and which are.
subject fo insignificant risk of changes in value.
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INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued atthe lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and consumables
are ascer’(amed on. a first-in ﬁrst—out basis. Costs, tnc!udlng fixed and variable produc’tion overheads, are
allocated to waork-in-progress and. flmshed goods determihed on-a. full absorptjon cost basis. Net realisable
value is the estimated.selling price In:the, ordinary course of business less estimatéd cost of completion and
selling expenses.

inventories Include vehiclés sold subject to.repurchase arrangements. These vehiclés. are carried at cost to

the company-and are amortised in changes in stocks and work-in-ptogress to their residual values. (i.e.
estimated second hand sale value). over the term of the arrangement.

PROVISIONS:

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be-estimated reliably, and It is probable that an outflow of ecohomic benefits Wwill be
réquired to. settle the obligation. Provisions afg held foi product warranty, legal and product liabilities, other
employée. benefit ‘obligations, restructtiring and environmental risks as detailed in nate 26 to the-financial
statements,

Supplier reimbursements are: recognised as separate assets within other financial assets: Ses note 15.
LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (‘L TIP')

The company operated.a share-based payment LTIP arrangement for certaln employees which made its
final payment.during the year ended 31 March 2019. The scheme provided a cash payment to-the employee
based.on a spegcific number of phantom shares at grant- date and the share price of Tata Mators' Limited at.
the vesting date; subject to profitabjlity and employment conditions. These were:accounted for -gs cash-
settled arrangements, whereby a llabillty was recognised at fair value at the date. of grant, using a Black-
Scholes model. At each balance sheet date untit the liability is settled, the fair value of the:liability was
rermeasured, with any chariges in fair vajue recognised inthe income stafement..

EMPLOYEE. BENEFITS:
Pension plans

The company operates three defined benefit pension plans, .the UK defined bénefit plans were previously
contracted out of the second. state pension scheme unlil 5 April 2016. The assets of the plans are held'in
separate trustee. administered funds, The plans ‘provide for a monthly pension after rétirement based on
salary and service as set out in the. rules of each scheme.

Contributions to the plans by the compariy take into consideration the fesults of actuarial valiations.
The UK defined benéefit plans were closed to new joiners in April 2010.

For defined benefit plans, the cost: of providing benefits is determined using the prajected unit credit method,
with -actuarial updates being carried out at the end of each reporting period.

Defined benefit costs are split into four categories:

~ Curient service cost, past-service cost arid gains and losses-on cuitailments ang settiements;
— Net inferest cost;

- Administrative expenses; and

— Remeasuremént.

Remeasurement coniprisingactuarial gains and losses; the effect of the asset celling-and the retumn on plan
assets (excluiding Interest) are recognlsed .immediately in the balance. sheet with a chargé or credit to the
statement of comprehensive incomie in the period it which they occur. Remeasuremerit recorded in the.
statement-of comprehensive inconie.is not recycled:

Past service cost, including curtailment gains and losses; is generally récoghised in-the incomé statement in
the period of plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the
petiod to.the net defined benefit liability, adjusted for expected cash flows duung the period. From FY20; at
the point a past service cost is incurred re-measurement of the P&L cost is_considered and will be re-
c¢alculated if there Is a material change.
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2  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The company presents these defined bensfit costs within *Employee costs” in the income 'statement (ses
note 6).

Separate defined contribution schemes are avatlable to all other employees of JLR. Costs'in respect of these
schemes are charged to the incomé: statement as incurred.

Actuarial gains-and losses

Actuarial gains and losses relating to r'etire‘mentub‘eneﬂt,.plans-.are recognised in other comprehensive income
inthe year in which they arise.

Measurement date

The measurément date of all retirement planis is 31 March,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Recognition and derecognition

A firancial instrument is any contract that gives fise {o a finapcial asset of one entity and a financial liability

or equity instrument-of another entity. Financial, instruments are recogmsed on the balance sheet when the
tompany becomes a'party.to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

The campany dereoogntses ‘a financial asset anly when the contractual fights to the cash’ flows from the
asset expire. or it transfers the financial asset and substantially:all the-risks. and rewards of ownership of the
asset to-another entity. If the company neithértransfers nor.retains substantlally all the:risks and rewards of
owuershlp and continues to control the transferred asset, the company récognises its retained interest In the:
asset and an associated liability-for amounts it may-have:to pay. If the.company retains’ ‘substahtially all the.
risks-and rewards of gwnership of a transferred financial asset, the -company continues to, recognxse the
financial asset and also recogmses a collateralisét bofrowing for the proceeds recelved. Any gain or loss
arising .on derecogmtlon is recogmsed in profﬁ or loss. When a financial instrument is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or-loss in equity (if-any) is-transferred to the income statement unless it was an equity
instrument elecnvely held at fair value through other comprehensive income. In"this case, any cumulative-
gain or loss in equity is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The.company feviews.
the facts and circumstances -around each asset before making a. determination. Financial assets that are
written.off could still be subject to enforcement activities.

Financial liabliities are derecognised when they are extinguished,; that is when the db_llgatjpn Is discharged,;
cancelled or has expired.

Initial measurement

Iritially, a financial insfrument is recoghised at its. fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable 16 the
acquisition or issue of financial instruments are-recognised In determining the- cariyifig amount, if it is not
classifled asat fair value thtough profit-or loss. Transaction costs of financial instruments carried at fair value
‘through profit or Ioss are expensed in prof‘ t or loss.

'Subsequently. finaricial instruments are measured according to the category in which they are classified.
Classification and measurement — financial assets

Classification of financial assels js based on the business mode! in which the instruments are. held as well
as the characteristics of their coiitractual cash flows. The. business model is. based on management’s'
intentions and past pattern of transactions. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their-entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest. The
company reclassifies financial assets when and only when its business model for mahaging. those assets.
changes.




Jaguar Land Rovar timitod
Annual repon and financial Statements-
Fer the year anded 39 March 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets are classified into three categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets with centractual cash flows that consist
solely of payments of principal ‘and interest and which are held with the intention of collectmg those
contractual cash ﬂows Subsequently, these are- measured at -amortised cost using the effective interest
method less lmpairment losses, if any. Theseé include cash and’ cash’ equNalents contract assets, finance
recejvables and other financial assets.

Financial assets at faif value through other comprehensive income are non-derivative financial assets with
contractual cash flows that consist salely of payments of principal and interest and which are held with the
intention of collecting those contractual cash flows as well.as to sell the financial asset. Subsequently, these
are measured at falf value, with unrealised gains or losses being recognised in other comprehensive income
apart frorm any-expected credit losses orforeign exchange gains or losses, which.are récognised.-in profit or
loss. This category can also include fiharicial assets that are ‘equity instruments which have been‘irrevocably
designated at Initial recognition as falr value through other comprehensive income. For these assets, thera
is no-expected credit Ioss recognised in profit orloss.

Financial.assets at fajr value through profit or loss are financial assets with contractual cash flows that do-not
consist solely of payments. of principal and inferest. This category includes dgrivatives; embedded derivatives
separated from the host contract and investments in certain convertiblea loan notes. Subsequently. these are
measured:at fair value, with unreallsed gains or losses being- recognlsed in-profit or-loss, with the exception
of derivative instruments designated in'a hedging relationship, for which hedge accounting is applied.

CIasSIﬁcatlon and measurement — financial liabilitles
Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost unless they meet the specific

criteria to be recoghised at fair value through profit or foss.

Other financial liabilitles: are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivatives arid embedded derivatives separated
from the host contract as well as financial liabilities held for trading; Subsequent to; ‘initial recoghition, these
are measured al fair value with ‘gains-or losses being recognised in profit ot loss,

Embedded derlvatives relating to prepaymetit options on senior notesare not considered as closely related

and are-separately accounted unless the exerclse price of these-options is approximately equal on each
exercise date to either the amortised cost of the senior notes or the present value of the lost interest for the

rémaining term.of the senior notes.
impairment

The company recognises a loss allowance in profit or loss for expected credit losses on financial-agsets held
at amortised cost or-at fair vaiue through ather- comprehenslve income. Expected credit losses-are forward
iooking and-are measured in a way that is unbiased .and represents a probablllty-we[ghted ammount, takes
into account the time value of money (values are. discounted using.the applicable effective interest rate) and

uses reasonable and supportable information.

Lifetime expected: credit losses .are calculated for assets that were deemed credit impaired &t initial
recogrition or have, subsequenﬂy become credit impaired as wéll as-those where credit risk has increased

significantly: since initial recognition..

Thie company adopts the simplified approach. permitted in IFRS 9 to apply lifetime-expected credit losses to.
trade recelvables-and contract assets: Whiere credit risk.is deemed low at the reporting date or to have not
increased significaritly, credit fosses for the next 12 months are calculated;

Credit risk has increased. significantly when the probability of default has increased significantly. Such
increases are relative and assessment.may include external ratings (where avallable) or. other information
such as past due payments. Histarig data and forward- Iooklng informationi are both considered. Objective
evidence for a significant increase in credit risk maylnclude where payment is overdue by 90 .or more days
as well as ather-information about significant financial difficulties of the borrower.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interests in the assets-of the company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity Instrumenits. issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct jssuecosts.

Investiments in equity instruments are measured &t fair value; however, where a quoted market price in an
active-rnarket is not available, equity instruments are measured at cost (investments In equity instrumenits
that-are not held for trading). The company has not" elected to account for these investments at fair value

through other comprehensive income.
Determination of fair.value

Fair value is the price that'would be received. to sell an asset or paid to transfer-a liability in- an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is directly
obsetvable or estimated using another valuation technrque In. estimating the fair value of an asset or liability,
the.company takes into account the: characteristics of the asset or liabllity if market: participants would take
those characteristics into account wheri pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the: company determines the fair value of-ﬂnanclal'lnstmments that are quoted in active
markets using the quoted bid prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask prices (financial liabilities- held) and
using"valuation techniques for other instruments.” Valuation techniques include the. discounted cash fiow
method and oftier valiation models.

Hedge accounﬂng-

The company uses-foreign currency forward contracts, foreign currency options and-borrowings denominated:
in foreign currency to hedge its risks associated with foreigh currency fluctuations relating to highly, probable
forecast transactions, The company: designates these: forelgn currency forward contracts, foreign currency
‘aptions ; and bon'omngs -denominated in foreign. currency in.a cash flow-hedging refationship by applying
hedge accounting principles under IFRS 9.

The company Uses cross-currency interest rate swaps to convert some of its forelgn currency-denominated
fixed-rate’ borrowings fo: GBP floating-rate borrowings., Hedge. accounting is appllad using both fair value and
cash flow hedging relationships.. THe-designated risks are foreign currency and interest rate. risks.

Derivative contracts are stated at fair value on the balance sheet at each reporting date.

At inception of the hedge ‘relationship, the company documents the economic relationship between the
hedging instrument and the hedged itemn, ‘including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging
insfrument-are expected to offset changes.in the cash flows of the hedged item: The company documents its-
risk management objective and strategy-for undertaking its hedging transactions.

The cormpany designates only the intrinsic-value of foreign exchange options in the hedging relationship. The
company désigriates amounts excluding foreign currency basis spread in the hedging relationship for both
fore_lg’n exchange forward contracts and cross-currency interest rate swaps.

Changes in the falr value of the derivative contracts that are designated and effective as hedges .of future
cash flows- are fecognised in the-cashflow hedgé reserve within other comprehensive. income (net of tax),
and any ineffective portion is recognised immediately‘in the.income’statement,

"Changes in both the. time value of foreign exchange opfions and foreigri currency basis spread of foreign
exchange forwards and cross-currency Interest rate swaps are recognised.in-other comprehensive income
(net of tax) in the cost of hedging reserve to the extent that they relate to the. hedged .item (the "aligned”
value).

-Changes inthe fair value of contracts that are designated in a fair value hedge are taken to the income
‘statement: They offset the change in fair value, attribufable to the hedged risks, of-the borrowings: designated
as the hedged item:
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Hedge accounting is discontinued whan the hedging instrument expires; or is sold, términated, exercised or
no longer quafifies for hedge accountlng Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the mcome
statement In the periods in which the forecast transactions affect profit.or-loss.or as an ad]ustment to a rion-
financlal item (e.g. inventory) when that item is recognised on the balance sheet, These deferred amounts
are. ulﬁmately recognised.in profit or.loss as the hedged item affects profit-or foss {for example through cost
of goods sold).

If the forecast transaction is nolonger expected to occur, the net cumulative gain orlossin eguity, Including
deferred costs of hedging,; is immediately fransferred and. recognised in the income statement.

LEASES

At mcept(on of a’contract, the company agsesses whether a contract is, or confain a iease. A contract is; or’
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control, the use ‘of-an identified asset for.a pericd of time-
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right fo control the use of :an
identified asset, the company assesses whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset— this may be specified exphcmy or implicitly, and should
be physically distinct or represent substantlally ail of the capacity of a physically distinct assef, If the supplier
has a substantive substation right, then the asset is not-identified;

The oompany has the right to.substantially-all of the @conomic benefits from the use-of the asset throughout
the period of use; and

The cornpany has the right to direct the use of the asset. The company has this right when it has the decision
making rights that are maost relevant to changing how and for what purposes the asset is used. In rare cases
where the decision about how and for- what purpose the.asset is used is predetermined, the company has
the right to direct the use of the asset if. either:

o The campany-has the rightto operate‘the asset; or
» The company designed the assetin a way that predetermines how and for what purposes it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the company allccates the.
consideration in the contract to each leasé comiponent on the. basls of theéir relative stand-alone prices.

The company recognises a right-of-use- asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
nght—of-use asset is initially measured. at cost, which comprises of the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for aity lease payments-made at or béfore the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove:the underlying asset or-to restore the underlying
asset or the: slte on which it is.allocated, less any lease. incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently ‘dépreciated using the-straigtit-line- method over the term of the lease.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are fot paid at
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate |mpl|cn in the iease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined; the company's incremental borrowing' rate, Generally, the company uses its incremerital,
borrowing rate as a discount rate. The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective «nterest
ethod. It is.re maasured wheri there is a change in future lease payments. The company has elected not
to recognise right-of-use assets ard lease liabilities for short-term leases.that have-a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low value asssts. The company assomates the lease payments associated with these.
leases as an expense on a straight line basls over the lease term. This policy is applied fo all contracts
ehtered into; or chahged, on ar after 1. Aprit2019. The comparative information for the year ending 31 “March
2019 continues-to be accounted for-under the company's previous.lease accounting policies under.JAS 17
L eases.
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LEASES {continued)

.Assets taken on finance lease

Afirjance lease is recognised as an asséf and a liability at the commencement of the lease, at the lower of
the fair value of the asset and the preseént value of the minimum lease payments lnma! direct costs, if any,
are also capitalised and, subsequent to initial recoghition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the,
accounting policy applicable to that asset. Miniuri lease payments made under finance: leases’ are
apportioned.betweeén the finance expense and the reduction of the outstandmg hablllty The finance expense
is allocated to each year during the lease term so-as to produce a constant periodic.rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Assets taken on operating lease

Leases other than finance-leases are-operatihg leases, and the: leased assets are not recognised on the
cohipany’s balance sheet. Payments made under operatmg leases are recognised in the income statement
ona stratght—line basis over the term of the lease in ‘Other expenses’.

NEW ACCOUNTING POLICY PRONOUNCEMENTS

(a) Standards, revisions -and amendments to standards and interpretations significant to the
company-and applied for the first timme-in the year ending 31 March 2020

IFRS 16 Leases.is effective for the year beginning 1 April 2019 for the company. This:standard replaces IAS
17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of the Transactions. Involving the Legal Form of a Lease
interpretations. Under IFRS 16, lessee accounting is based on a single-model, resulting from the efimiriation
of the distinction between operating and finance leases: All leases will be recognised on the balance sheet
with a rightiofcuse. asset capitalised ‘and depreclated over the: estimated lease term tdgether with a
corresponding. liability that will reduce over the:same period with an appropriate interest charge recognised.

The cdmpany has elected to apply the exermnptians forleases with a lease term of 12 months or less (shoit-
term leases) and for leases for which the underiyung asset.is of low value, The lease. payments associated
with those: leases are: recognised as an experise on a straight-line basis over the lease term’ or ancther
systematic.basis.

The company is applying. the modified retrospective apprdach on transition under which the comparahve
financial statements will hot be restated. The cumulative impact of the first-time application of IFRS 16 is
‘recognised as an adjustment ta. opening equity as at 1 April 2019. The details of the.changes .in accounting
policies are disclosed below.

The company has elected to use the following practical expedients-at transitlon permitted by the Standard:

o On:initial application, IFRS 16 has only been applied to contracts-that were previously classified as
leases under IFRIC 4;

« Regardless of the original iease term, lease arfangemerits with a remaining durationof less than
12 monttis will continue to be expénsed to the Income Statement on a straight line basis over the
lease term;

o Short:term and low value leases will bé exempt;

s The lease term has been determined with the usé of hindsight where the contract contains options
to extend or terminate the lease;

= The discount rate applied as at fransition date is the incremental borrowing rate corresponding to
the remaining lease term;

e The measurement of a right-of-lise assét excludes. _thé initiat direct costs at the date of initiai
application.

The jimpact of the first-time application of IFRS 16 as at 1 April 2019 js the recognition of nght-of-use assets
.of £297 million-and lease liabilities of £227 million.. Asat the date of initial application, there-is.a £9 miltion
reduction in het assets (net of tax).
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When measuring lease liability, the company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing
rate at 1 April 2019. The weighted-average rate applied is 7.9%.

Financial obligations for aperating leases at 31 March 2019 303

Application exemption for short-term leases. (9)

Application-exerption for leases of low-value assets (12).
Future lease commitmerits - contracts. signed on or béfore 31 March 2019 9)

Extension and termination options reasonably certain to be exercised ‘80

Variable lease payments-based on an index or a rate-

Gross lease liabilities for former operating leases at1 Aprii 2019 353

Discounting impact: (126).
Lease liabllities for former operating leases at 1 April 2019 227

Present valire of finance lease liabilities as 31 March 2019 -

Total lease liabilitles at 1 April 2019 227

The opening fight-of-Use asset by class of underlying assets is disclosed in Note. 35.

{b) Standards, revisions and amendments to standards ard interpretations not sugnlﬁcant to the
company and applied for the first time in the year.ending.31 March:2020

The following amendments and interpretations have. been adopted by the company in the year ending 31
March 2020.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty overincorme tax treatments;

Amendrnents to IFRS 9 Financial Instrumenits — Prépayment features with negative compensation;
Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits— Plan amendment, .curtailment or settlement;
Amendments to IAS 28 Investments.in Assoclates and Joint Ventures — Long-term interests in
associates and joint ventures; and

e Annual impravements to IFRS standards 2015-2017 cycle.

The adoption of these amendments and interpretations has hot had a-sigriificant impact on the financial
stalements:

(¢) Standards, revisions and amendments to standards and interpretations not yet effective and not
yet adopted by the company

The following pronouncements, issued by the JASB and.endorsed by the EU, are not yet effective and have
not 'vef been .adopted by the company. These amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginining on or. after1 January 2020.

o. Amendmeits to IFRS 9 Finandiat Instrumerits, FAS-39 Financial Instruments: Recognitiori and
Measurement and IFRS 7 Finaricial Instrurents: Disclosures — Interest rate benchmark reform;-

'« Amendments to IFRS 3 Business. Combinations.— Definition of a business;

o Amendmients to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements-and IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors —Definition of material; and

.+ Amendments to references to the conceptual framework in IFRS standards.

The company.is currently-assessing the.impact of these pranauncements on the financial statements.
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(d) Standards, revisions and amendments to standards, and interpretations not yet endorsed by the
EU-and not yet adopted by the company

The. follbwing_ pronouncements; isstied by the JASB, have not yet been endorsed by the EU, are not yet
effective-and have not yet been adopted by the company.

# IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts;

» Amendments.to IAS:1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification of liabilities as current
or non-current; ‘

» Amendmentsto IFRS 3 Business Combinations — Reference, to the: conceptual framework;

o Amendments to JAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment ~ Proceeds before intended use;

' Amendmiénts to FAS"37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and.Contingent Assets — Onerous

cohtracts - cost of fulfilling a contract,

s Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases — Covid-19-related rent concessions; and

e Annual improvements to IFRS ‘standards 2018-2020 cycle.

The company is currently assessing the-impact of these pronouncements on the financial statements.
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3 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
The excaptional item recognised in the year ended 31 March 2020 comprise:

* Anvimpairment charge; of £108 milfian for:the year ended 31 March 2020 following an impairment.exercise.
undertaken in accordance with IAS 36. Further details are given in note 17; and

* Restructuring costs of £29. million rtelating to the company restructuring programme: that commenced during:
the year ended 31 March 2019, This included a. past service pension cost of £4 million.

The exceptional items recognised in the year ended 31 March 2019.comprise:

= Animpairment charge of £3,089 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 followmg an impairment exercise
undertaken in -accordance with IAS 36. Further details are given in note 17;.

» Resftucturing costs of £136 million relating to & company restructuring programme’ announced and.carried
out during the year ended 31 March 2019; and

«-A-past service . cost of £17.million following & High Court ruling in October 2018 that pension schemes are
required to equalise- male .and female.members' benefits for the inequalities within guaranteed minimum
pension (“GMP”) earned between. 17 May 1990 and. 5 April 1997. The company- historically made no
assumptioris for GMP ahd therefore: considered. the change to. be -a plan amendment. Further details are
given in note 31. . .

The tables below set-out the exceptional items recorded in the years ended 31 March. 2020 and 2019 -and
the impact on the income statement if these items were not disclosed separately as exceptional items.

Excludlng exceptmnal items 2 217 4,399
Impact of:

‘Impairment 16,17 - 108
‘Restructuring costs 26 32 (3)
Incliiding excéptional items 2,249 4,504~

. Excluding exceptu nai |terﬁs

Impact of:

Imipalrment 16,17 - 3,089
Restructuring costs 131 5.
Pénsion past service cost 31 17 -
Includirig exceptional ifems 2,636 7,643

4 REVENUE
‘The company’s reveriues-are ‘summarised as follows:

Revenue recagnised. for sales of goods 19,261 20,682
Revenue recognised for sefvices transferred 287 102
‘Revienue - other 866 956
Total revenue from contracts with customers. 20,414 21,740
Realised revenue hedges (565) (870)
Total revenue. 19,849 20,870

“Revenue'— othier” includes sales of goods other than vehicles, parts and accessories as well as revenue
‘recognised outside the scope of IFRS 15, pnmarlly being Iease Instalments recognised from assets sold
with a repurchase commitment..
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Revenue disaggregation

The following table presents the company's revenue, disaggregated by primary geographical market, timing
of revenue recognition and major product categories. All revenue is generated from the company’s single
automotive operating segment.

, Year ended 31 March 2020 (£ Restof Restof  Total
_ millions) UK us China Europe World Revenue
gR:(‘)’gg"e recognised for sales of 2753 5128 2446 5736 3,198 19,261
Revenue recognised for services .
transferred ) 95 169 22 ! 287
Revenue - other 586 - 239 - 41 866
Total revenue from contracts with 5 43, 5297 2707 5736 3,240 20,414
customers
Realised revenue hedges - (370) (166) - (29) (565)
Total revenue 3,434 4,927 2,541 5,736 3,211 19,849
. Year ended 31 March 2019 (£ Restof Rest of Total
“millions) UK us _ China Europe World Revenue
gR:;’g;‘“ recognised for sales of 2303 6016 3202 5291 3870 20,682
Revenue recognised for services _
transferred 2 - 80 B 102
Revenue - other 908 - 2 - 46 956
Total revenue from contracts with
customers 3,233 6,016 3,284 5,291 3,916 21,740
Realised revenue hedges - (437) (352) - (81) (870)
Total revenue 3,233 5,579 2,932 5,291 3,835 20,870
Contract liablilities
: Year ended 31 March (£ millions) 2020 2019
Ongoing service obligations 273 272
Liabilities for advances received 18 33
Total contract liabilities 291 305

Revenue that is expected to be recognised within five years related to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) amounted to £291 million at 31 March 2020 (2019: £305 mitlion).

‘Ongoing service obligations’ mainly relate to long-term service and maintenance contracts, extended
warranties and telematics services. ‘Liabilities for advances received’ primarily relate to consideration
received in advance from customers for products not yet wholesaled, at which point the revenue will be
recognised. ‘Ongoing service obligations’ and ‘Liabilities for advances received’ are both presented within
‘Other liabilities’ in the balance sheet.

The company applies the practical expedient in IFRS 15.121 and does not disclose information about
remaining performance obligations that have an original expected duration of one year or less. This is
because revenue resuliting from those sales will be recognised in a short-term period. The services included
with the vehicle sale are to be recognised as revenues in subsequent years but represent an insignificant
portion of expected revenues in comparison.

The movement in contract liabilities relates solely to revenue recognised from balances held at the beginning
of the year of £157 million and increases due to cash received for performance obligations unsatisfied at the
year end of £143 million.




-Jaguar Land Rover Liimitéd
Annuat report and financlal statements
Fortha yase endod 31 Maich 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 MATERIAL AND OTHER.COST OF SALES

Changes I Inventaries of finished goods and work-in-progress (187) 4

Piirchase of products for sale 1,039 1,059
Raw materlals arid consumables used 12,361 13,150
Realised purchase hedges (40) (147)

Total material and other cost of sales 13,173 14,038

6 EMPLOYEE NUMBERS AND COSTS

Wages arid salaries - employee costs’ 1,578 1,663
Wages and salaties - agency costs 154 270
Total wages and safaries. 1,732 1,933
Sacial. security costs ‘and benefits 246 291
Pension costs 239 264
Total employee costs 2,217 2,488

- Manufacturing 16,121

17,333
Research and development 7,409 1,402 8,811
other 6,340 600 6,940
Total.employee numbers 29,870 3,214 33,084

w201

Manufactyring ‘ 17.768. 1,848 9,61€
Research and developrment 8,151 2,393 10,544
Other 7,020 1,019 8,039

Total émployee numbers. 32,939 5,260 38,199
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7  DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors' emoluments. 7,777,730 7,360,795
Increase/(decrease) of long-tenn incentive scheme amounts receivable 2,621,363 (278,025)
Post-employment beniefits 430,442 596,763
Compensation forloss of office 437,500 =

The aggregate of emoluriiénts-and.amounts accrued under the bonus scheme and long-term incentive plan
("LTIP") of the. highest-paid director was £4,099, 544 (2019: £2,946 676), together with a cash aliwance in
lieu of pension benefits of £349,442 (2019: £520 763) During the year; the value of LTIP awards accrued
has increased by £803,472 (2019: decrease of £98,010), which will become payable in future periods.

The highest paid director's emoluments is-paid by Jaguar Land Rover Automative plc, an intermediate parent,
who makes recharges to the company.

:Marchi{iiumber
Rehrement benefits are accruing to the following numberof directors
under:.
Defined contribution scheme : 1 1

8 LONG-TERM INCE.NTIVE‘ PLAN (‘LTIP').

During the year ended 3.1 March 2016, the.company issued the final share-based payment LTIP arrangement
based on the share price of Tata Motors Limited. The final cash payment in respect of the-share-based
payment'LTIP was made duririg the. year ended 31 March 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the compahy announced a new LTIP to replace the previous share-
based. payment LTIP. The new LTIP effective fram -June 2016, provides a cash payment to certaln
employees based -on. the Jaguar Land Rover Automotive pic Group's. performance against long-term
business mefrics related to performance and'strategic priorities (over a period of three years). This new LTIP-
benefit scheme has been accountéd for in dccordance with JAS 19 Employee Benefits.

Comparative information

The.information in this section gives' details of the previous share-based payment LTIP arrangement that-is
reflected in the comparatlve information for the years.enided 31 March.2018.

The stheme provided-a cash payment to-the employee based on a specific number of phantom shares at
the grant date and the share . price. of Tata Motors Limited at the vesting date. The cash payment was
dependent upon continued empioyment for the. duration of the'three-year vesting period.

6l‘nstandlng at thé~‘bé§fnnl;1§~61; the year 1-,929.-3'91
Vested in the year (1,764,566).
Forfelted in the year (164,825)

Outstanding at the-end of the year

The weighted average share price of the phantom shares vested in the years ended 31 March 2019 was
£3:20.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of ihe outstanding phantom shares as at 31 March 2019
-was nil years,
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8  LONG-TERM.INCENTIVE PLAN (‘LTIP’) (CONTINUED)

No-phantom shares were. exercisable as at 31 March 2019.

‘During the year ended 31 March.2019, £1 million was recognised as a-credit in “Employee costs” in refation
tothe share-based payment LTiP.

Thie fair value of the balance sheet liability.in respéct of phantom Stock-awards outstanding at31 March 2019
was-£nil. :
The fair value of the awards was calculated-using the Black-Scholes model at the grant date. The fair valie
was updated at each reporting date as the awards are accounted for as cash-settfed under IFRS 2. No
‘shares: were exercisable as at 31 March 2019,

9 OTHER EXPENSES

Stores, spare parts and toals 108 187
Freight cost : 545 586.
Woiks, operations and other costs 2,454 2,449
Repairs 29 28
Power and.fue] 76 80
Rent, rates and other takes 1 29
Insurance 20 23
Write-down of investments 6 -
Whrite-down of property, plant.and equipment. - 18
Product warranty ‘ 901 792
Publicity: 259 347

Total other expenses 4,399 4,549
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40 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Total research and development costs incurred 4 1,790 1,997
Research and development expensed (421) 421y
Engineering costs capitalised 1,369 1,576
Interest capitalised 105 89
Research and development grants capitalised (48) (97).
Total internally developed intangible additions 1,426 1,578

Engineering costs capitalised of £1,369 million (2019:-£1,576 million} comprises £471 million (2019: £672
million) incfuded in ‘Employee costs' and £898 million (2019: £504 million) included in ‘Other expenses” in
the.incorne statement.

During the year ended 31 March.2020, £102 million* (2019 £135 million) was recognised as a Research and
Development Expenditure Credit (RDEC') incentive oh qualifying expenditure. During the year ended 31
March 2020, £47 million (2019: £01 rnillion) of the RDEC ~ the proportioh refating fo capitalised' product,
development expenditure and other intdngible assets — has been offset against the cost of the respective
assets. The remalning £55 miillion-(2019:£44 millien) of the RDEC has been recognised in ‘Other income’.

11 FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSE

Finance income 63 47
Dividends received 43 129
Total finance income 106 176
Total interest:on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (297) (218).
Interest income on derivatives des(gnated as-a fair value hedge of 3 ‘ 4
financial liabilities ’

Unwind of discount on provisions (25) 20
'Interest capitalised 113 110
Total interest expense (206) (125)

The capitalisation rate used to calculate borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 4.2 per cent (2019:
4.1 pér cent).
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12 LOSS BEFORE TAX

Expense/(income) included in loss before tax for the year are as follows:

k) <

Foreign exchange loss and fair value adjustments on loans 160 ot
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss 6h-economic hedges of joans {29) 18
Foreign exchange (galn)lloss on-derivatives {15} 31
Unrealised loss on commadities 78 .34
Depreciation of right-of-use-assets 56 -
Depreciation of praperty, plant and eguipment 880 1,031
Amortisation of intangible assets (excluding internally generated - : 09 103
development costs) i
Amortisation of intérnally. generated development costs 789 965
Op'erating lease rentals in respect of plant, property and equipment - 88
Expénses related ta short-term leases. ‘ 1 -
Expenses related to low-value assets, excluding short-term leases of: 5 .
low-value assets

Loss. on disposal of property, plant-and equipment and software 16 - 58
Exceptionat items’ (137) (3,242)
Auditor remuneration 5 T4

The followihg table sets out the auditor remuneration for the year (rounded to the nearest 0.1.million):

Fees payable to the company's auditor for the: audit of the company's 35 32

-annual financial statements

Fees payable to the company's auditor for.amounts incurred on behalf of 0.3 0:2
other group companies

Fees payable to company's auditor for amounts.incurred on behalf of ather’ 0.5 .
-group companies in respect of the prior year

Total audit fees- 43 34
Fees payable for audit related assurance services on behalf of ather group- 0.8 0.8
campanies* . .
Fees payable for other assurance services on behalf-of other group 0.3 0.1
-companies* - ’
‘Total non-audit fees 1.1 0.9
Total audit and related fees 54 4.3

*FY 19 comparative-amounts have been rastated tofully.reflact non-audit services received.
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13 TAXATION
Recognised in the.income statemeént

Current tax expense

Current year 29 37
Adjustments for prior yedrs M (1
Current tax expense 28 36
Deferred tax (credit)lexpense
Origination and reversal of témporary differences (135) (486)
Adjustments for-prior years. 14 ' {4)
Rate changes. . 41 46,
Deferred tax credit _ (80) {444y
Total income tax credit (52) (408)

Prior year adjustments relate to differences between prior year.estimates of tax position and current revised
estimates or submission of tax computations.

Recognised in the statemeént of comprehensive income

Defefred tax expensel(credlt) on actuarial gains on retirement benefits 187 (51)
Deferred tax experisef(credit).on.change in fair vaiue of cash flow hedges: 56 (20)
Deferred tax (credit)/éxpense on rate change. {21) 1§
Total tax expensel/(credit) 222 (56)

Reconcifiation of effective tax rate

Loss for the year {656) (3.,464)
Total jncome tax credit (52) ' (408)
Loss before tax (708) (3,872)
;rgzn(\;ot?; %);2/903159. using the tax rates applicable to Individual entities: (135) (736)
Non-deductible expenses: 13 79

Non-taxable income (11) (48)
Changes in tax rate 41 46
Withholding taxes suffered 8 10

‘Unrecagnised or written~dowh deferred tax assets ‘19 245

Prior period adjustments 13 4)
Total income tax credit (52) {408)

Included within prior period ad;ustments for the year ended 31 March-2020 is £13-million expense (2019: £4
million credlt) relating to revisions of prior year éstimates of the company's tax position-to bringthem In line
with the latest estimates and curretitly filed tax positions,

The UK Finance Act 2016 was enacted. during theyear ended 31 March 2017 which included-provisions for
a further reduction'in the UK corporation tax rate to 17 per cent with effect fram 1 April 2020..
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13 TAXATION (CONTINUED)
Subsequently, a change.to the main UK corporatlon tax rate, arinounced'in the Budget on 11 March 2020,

was substantively enacted.on 17 March 2020. The. rate applicable fiom 1. April.2020 now remains at 19 per
cent; rather than the. previously enacted reduction to 17 per cefit.

Accordingly, UK deferred tax has been.provided at 19 per cent on assets (2019: 17.5 per cent) and 19 per
cent on' liabilities-(2019: 17.3 per cent).

14  INVESTMENTS.
Investments consist of the following:

SPFPPRIRY

Unquoted equntymvestments 1.1 ) 1,079

During the.year ended 31 March 2020, the company increased its lnvestment in Chery Jaguar Land Rover
Automotive Company Ltd. by £33 million (2619: £nil). The company also invested £35 million in Jaguar Land
Rover Htalia SpA, a further £5 million in Jaguar Land Rover Colombla SAS and £6 million in Cloudcar Inc.

During thé year ended 31 March 2019, the company irivested £2 million for 100 per. cent of the share capital
of Jaguar Land Rover. Classic Deutschland GmbH,100 per cent of the share capital of Jaguar Land Rover
Hungary KFT afid 100 per cent of the share capital of Jaguar-Land Rover Classic USA LLC. The company
also invested-an additional £261 millionIn Jaguar-Land Rover Slovakia s.r.0_and-£6 million in CloudCar Inc.

Details of the direct and inqirect subsidiary undertakings are as follows, each being.a 100 per cent interest
in the ordinary share capital of the company unless otherwise stated:

Jaguar e L.and Rover Brasll ‘Br'a'z“il T Avenida |birapuera 2332, Torre | ~ 10 andar— Moema

Indistria ¢ Cornércio de: 04028-002, Sdo Paulo-SP-Brazil

Vefculos: LTDA

Jaguar Land Rover (South South Africa 28 Victoria Link, Route 21 Corporate Park, Nellmapitis

Africa) (Pty) Lid Drive, Irene X30, Centurion, Tshwane, Gauteng, South
Africa

Jaguar Land Rover Australia Australia Level 1, 189 O'Riordon Street, Mascof, 2020, NSW,

Pty Limited -Australia

Jaguar Land Rover Austria Austria Siezenheimér Strasse 39a, 5020 Salzburg Austria

GmbH

Jaguar Land Rover Belux N.V.  Belgium ‘Generaal Lemansfaat-47, 2018 Antwerpen, Belgilim

Jaguar Land Rover Canada, Canada 75 Courtneypark Drive West, Unit 3 Mississauga, ON

uLc L5W 0ES3; ‘Carniada’

Jaguar Land Rover Germany Am Kronberger Hang 2a, 65824 Schwalbach/Ts;

Deutschiland GmbH Genmany

Jaguar Land Rover Espana SL  Spain Torre Picasso, Plaza Pablo Ruiz Picasso, 1 — Planta

42, 28020 Madrid, Spain
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14  INVESTMENTS {(CONTINUED)

Jaguar Land Rover France Fré}iée T Z.A. Kleber — Batiment Ellington, 165 Boulevard de

SAS Valmy, 92706 Colombes, Cedex; France

Jaguar-Land Rover India India Nanavati Mahalaya, 3rd floor, 18, Homi Mody Street,

Limited Mumbai, Maharashtra, ndia 400001 '

Jaguar Land Rover ltalia-SpA  Italy Via Alessandro Marchetti, 105 - 00148, Roma, italy

-Jaguar Land Rover Japan Japan ‘Garden City Shinagawa Gotenyama Bidg. 9F, 6-7-29

Limited Kita-Shinagawa, Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo-141-0001,
Japan )

Jaguar Land Rover Karea Co. Korea 25F West' Mirae Asset ‘Center 1 Building 67 Suha-

Lid dong, Jung-gu Seoul 100-210, Korea

Jaguar Land Rover Nederland  Holland PO.Box 40, Stationsweg 8, 4153 RD Beesd,

BV ’ Netherlands

Jaguar Land Rover North USA 100 Jaguar Land Rover Way, Mahwah, NJ 07495,

Ameérica; LLC USA

Jaguar Land: Rover Portugal Portugal . Edificio Escritorios do Tejo, Rua da Polo Suli, Lote

Veiculos e Pecas, Lda 1.10.1.1 —3.° B-3, Parish of Santa Marla dos Olivais,
‘Municipality of Lishoa; Portugal.

Jaguar Land Rover (South. England and Abbey Road, Whitley, Coventry, cv3 4LF, England

Africa) Holdings td Wales

JLR Nominee: Company Limited. England and Abbey Road, Whitley, Coventry, CV3 4LF, England

Wales

Land Rover [reland.Limited Ireland c/o LK Shields Solicitors 39/40 Upper Mount Street

Dublin 2, Ireland

Daimler Transport Vehicles England and Abbey Road, Whitiey, Coventry, CV3 4LF, Engiand

Limited ’ ‘Wales

Jaguar Cars South Africa (Pty)  South Africa Siman Vermooten Road, Sliverton, Pretoria 0184

Ltd “\ South Africa

Jaguar Cars Limited England and Abbey Road, Whitley, Coventry, €V3 4LF, England
Wales ' ' )

Land Rover Exports Limited: England and Abbey Road, Whitley; Coventry, CV3 4LF, England
Wales i

S. S: Cars Limited England.and Abbey Road, W‘hiﬂéym Caventry, CV3.4LF, England
Wales.

The Daimlet Motor Company England and Abbey Road, Whitley,.Coventry, CV3 4LF, Engtand
Limited Wales, ‘ '
The-Lanchestet Motor Englandand  Abbey Road, Whitley, Coventry, CV34LF, England
Company Limifed- Wales
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14  INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Jagua Land Rover P
Trustees Limited
Jaguar Land Rover-Slovakia
S.r.o,

Jaguar Land Rover
Sirigapore Pte. Lid

Jaguar Racing Limitéd
InMotion Ventures. Limited
Lenhny Insurance:Limited
InMotion Ventures 2 Limited

InMotion Ventures 3 Limited

InMotion Ventures-4 Limited

Jaguar Land ‘Rover Colombia
SAS.

Jaguar Land Rover México,.
S.APldeCyV.

Jaguar Land Rover Servicios
México, S.A. de. C.V.

Jaguar Land Rover Taiwan,
Company Ltd

Jaguar Land Rover Ireland
(Services) Limited
Jaguar-Land Rover Classic
USALLC

Jaguar Land Rover Classic
Deutschland GmbH

Hungary Jaguar Land Rover
Hungary KFT

Jaguar Land Rover Ventures,
Limited

Bowler Motors Limited

England and
Wales
Slovakia

Singapore

‘England and

Wales
England and
Wales
England and
Wales
England and

‘Wales

England and
Wales

England and
Wales
Colombia

Mexico.

Maexico

.Taiwan

Ireland
USA
Germany:

Huhgary
England and
Wales
England and
Wales

“Abbey Rosd

fiey, Coventry, CV3 4LF, England
Vysoka 2/B, 811 06 Bratislava, Slovakia

138 Market Street, CapitaGreen, Singapore

Abbey Road, Whitley, Coventry, CV3 4LF, England
Abbiey Road, Whitlay, Covenitry, CV3 4LF, England

Abbey Road, Whitley, Goventry, CV3 4LF, Englahd

Abbey Road, Whitley, Coventry: CV3-4LF, England

Abbey Road, Whitley, Coventry, CV3 4LF,England

Abbey Road, Whitley, Coveritry; CV3 4LF, England

CL 67735 OFE, 1204 Bogotan, Cundinamarka 13192

‘800 Colombia

Av. Javier Barros Sierra No.540 Piso 7:0flcina 703,

Col. Santa Fe la Fe Det., Alvarc Obregén, México, D.F.

C.P. 01210

Av: Javier Barros Sierra No.540 Piso 7 Oficina: 703,
Col. Santa Fe la Fe De!., Alvaro Obregéh, México, D.F..
C.P.01210 ‘

12F, No. 40, Sec. 1, Chengde Road, Datong Dist.,
Taipei City 103, Taiwan (R.0.C.)

c/o 40 Upper Mount Street, Dublin 2, Ireland

251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington, Delaware; USA

Ringstrafie 38, 45219 Essen, Germany
1062 Budapest, Andrassy Ut 100, Hungary
Abbey Road, Whitley.,Coventry, CV3 4LF England

Abbey Road; Whitley ,Coventry, CV3 4LF England
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ncorporatiol

Spark44 (JV) Ltd: (50.5% direct England and ‘ i c e
shareholder) Wales Abbey Road, Whitley ,Coventry, CV3 4LF England

Spark44 Limited-(50.5%. indirect England and ‘The White Collar. Factory, 1 Old Street Yard, London

shareholding) Wales’ ECIY 8AF England

Spark44 Pty Ltd (50.5% indirect Australia Level 5,85 Berry Street, North Sydney ,» NSW' 2060,
shareholding) Australia

‘Spark44 GmbH (50.5% indirect - . A ; .
shareholding) Germany Querstr: 7, 60322 Frankfurt am Main, Germany
Spark44 LLC (50.5% indirect | )cp 5870'W. Jefferson Bivd, Studio H,Los Arigeles, CA
shareholding). ' 90016, USA

Spark44 Limited (50:5% indirect China Rooms 6401,6402,6501,6502, No.436. Ju Men Road,
shareholding) Huang Pu District, Shanghali :

Spark44 DMCC (50.5% indirect UAE Unit No. 1401 81404, Swiss Tower, Plot No:-JLT-PH2-
shareholding) s Y3A Jumeirah Lakes Towers, Dubai, UAE

Sparksd. 2;’";;3"(5%'?}"1’: ect  India Block A, Level 1, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besent
shareholding) Road, Worli,Mumbai —400018

Spark44 Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore 138 Market Street.36-01/02 CapitaGreen, Singapore-
(50.5% indirect shareholding) 9ap 048946

Spark44 Comimunicacions S.L. . . . . CNp s

(50.5% indirect sharehioldin g) Spain Prim 19, 4th floor, 28004 Madrid

Sparkd4 s.r. (50.5% indirect

shareholding) Italy Via Marcella, 4/6- 00153 Rore

‘Spark44 Sgoul Limited (50.5% ‘ 4

indirect shareholding) South Korea F12, 11 Cheonggyecheon-ro, Jongno-gu, Seoul, Korea
Spark44 Japan K- K: (50.6% 272 4808 i [

indirect sharehatding) Japan i;i?;—; -806, Akasaka, Minato-ku, Tokyo, 153-0042,
Spark44 Capada inc (50.5% .

indirect shareholding) Canada 1059 Spadina.Read, Toronto, ON MSN.2M7, Canada
Spark44 South Africa (Pty) )

Limited (50.5% indirect Souith Africa i: Forssman.Close, Barbeque Downs, Kyalam:, South.
shareholding) fica

Spark44 Taiwan Limited: (50.5% Taiwan 18F ., No.460, Sec: 4, Xinyi Rd., Xinyi Dist., Taipei City

indirect’ shareholding) 110; Talwan (R.OC. )

Spark44 Colombla SAS ~ g S - . .
(5% 5% mdlrect shareholdlng) Colombia €172 #10.07 oficina 401, Bogota, Colombia
Sparkd44 Shanghal (50.5%
indirect shareholding)

640186501, 4F&S5F Block, 6.No .436 Ju Men Road,.

China 200023 Huangpu District, Shanghai China:
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The company has the following investmenits.in joint:ventures, associates and trade. investments at 31 March
2020:

Naie of investment: ¢

d; - Principalactivity : Registered office:address -

incorporaﬁon TS
Room 1102, Binjiang,
. . ; lntematlonal Plaza, No 88
Chety-Jaguar Land Manufacture and
Rover Automotive 25.00% China assembly of Tonggang Road, Changsfiu
Co. Litd vehicles Economic.and Technical,
T ’ Developmeni Zone, Suzhou City,
' Jiangsu Province, China
Jaguar Cars.Finance- 0 ‘England & . 280 Bishopsgate, London, EC2M
Limited 49.90%  \Wales Nor-tréding 4RB, England
. Business:and
p IR, England & o 84 Kirkiand Avenue, |iford, Essex,
9 .
Synaptiv Limited 33.30% Wales dom_estlc.__soﬁware, Englan d, | GS 0TN
- development
Automotive !
. . 2191 E Bayshore Rd.200, Palo

CloudCar Ing; 33.30% UsA software. Alto, CA 94303, USA

development :

Holding company
Drivaclubservice Pte. o s and mobillity: - 22 Sin Ming Lane, #06-76,
Limited 25.08%  Singapore application” Midview City, Singapore 573960

ownaer/licensor

Unit A,-9/F, D2 Place ONE; 9
Driveclub Limited 25.83%. Hong-Korig’ Vehicle leasing Cheurig Yee:Street, Lai.Chi Kok,
Kowlooh, Hong Kong

Manufacture and The Priory Barn Priory Road,

ARC Vehicle Limited -29.20%  -ngland& deveiopment of  Wolston, Coventry, United
Wales
electrified vehicle  Kingdom, CV8 3FX
Trading investments
. Sale of - ~ o
Jaguar Land Raver o o B Badenerstrasse 600, 8048 Zurich,
Schweiz AG 10.00% Switzerland automotive. . Switzerland
vehicles and parts

Except for CloudCar Inc. and Driveclub Limited, the proportion of vating rights disclosed in the table above
is:the same as the company's interest in the ordinary share capital of each undertaking.

Chery - Jaguar Larid Rover Alitomotive Co, Ltd. is a limited liability company’ whase legal form confirms
‘separation between the parties. to the joint arrangement There is no contractual-arrangement of any other
facts or clrcumstanoes that indicate that the parties to the joint canitrol-of the: arrangement have righis't to'thi
.assets or-obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. Accordingly, Chery Jaguar:Land Rover
Autombitive Co. Ltd. is classified-as a joint venture. Chery Jaguar ‘Land Rover Autormotive Co: Ltd is not

publicly-listed.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, a dividend of. £33 million was received from Chery Jaguar Land Rover
Automotive Co. Ltd. (2019: £11 million).

The company has no additional rights orinfluence over Jaguar Cars Finance Limited ather than the voting:
rights attached:to the ordinary share capital.
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15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-current
Warrdnty reimbursement and other receivables. 102 104
Restricted cash 1 1
Derivative. financial instruments 142 54
“Other 1 -
Total non-current: other financial assets 246 459
Current
Warranty relmbursement arid other receivables 87 88
Restricted cash 9 9
Derivative financial instruments 241 133
Accrued Jricome 14 44
Amounts owed by group undertakings: . 1,807 1,348
Other 9 7
" Total curfent other financial assets 2,167 1,629

Amounts owed by.group undertakings are tepayable on- demand
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Pl

Cost:

Balance at 1 -April 2018 1,374 7,690 3 101 74 8 51 838 10,139
Additions - - - 32 7 - 3 1,295 1,337
Transfers 291 1,162 - - - - - (1,453) -
Disposals (N (525) - 7 C) - - - (534)
Impaliment - - - - - - - (143) {143)
Balance.at 31 March.2019 1,664 8,327 3 126 80 [3 54 537 10,799
Adjustment on the initial application . .
of IFRS 16 : - - - - - @) : - @)
Adjusted opening balance 1,664 8,327 3 126 80 - 54 537 10,791
Additions - - 5, 21 6 - - 1,082 1,114
Transfers 216 655 . - - . . (871) -
Disposals - (19) - 2) - . y (i (33)
Impairment - - - - - - - {8) (8)
'_Balanée at 31 March 2020 1,880 8,963 8 145 86 - 53 729 11,864
" ‘Depreciation and impairment.
Balance at 1 April 2018 195 3,475 1 33 32 4 13 - 3,753
Depreciation charge for the year 64 947 1 3 6 - - - 1,031
Disposals 1) {479) (5y - - - . 485)
Asset write-downs - - - - - - 18 - 18
Impairment - 917’ - 18 g 1 - - 945
Balance at 31 March 2018 258 4,860 2 59 47 5 31 - 5.262
Adjustment on ths initial application . .
of IFRS 16 - o - - - ®) - - ®
Adjusted opening balance 258 4,860 2 59 A7 B 31 - 5,257°
Depreciation charge for the year 81 781, 2 1 5 - - - 880
Disposals - (18) - 1) - - - - (16)
Impairment - 35 - il - - - - -36
Balance at 31 March 2020 339 5,661 4 70 52 - 31 - 8,157
Net Book Value ] .
At1 Apri) 2018 1,179 4,215 2 68 42 4 3g 838 6,386
Af 31 March 2019 1,406 3,467 1 67 33 3 23 837 5,537
At 31 March 2020 1,541 3,302 4 75 34 . 22 729 5,707

As part.of the company's review-of the carrying value of property, plant and equipment, £nil.(2019: £18 million) of heritage vehicles and.assets under construction
have been witten down, and this has been recognised as an expense. within-‘Other expenses’.
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17  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

... . daguarLand Rover Limik
Ajinus! feport 8fid finandlal stitémen
Fortha yaar-ended 31 March 20

Balance at-1 April 2018 382 618 416 2,059 6,816 40,294
Additions - exterrially purchased - 77 3 - - 80
Additions - jnternally deveioped - - - 1,579 - 1,579
Capitalised product development - o

iht'eprhally d_eF\)l,elqped i - - - (1,084) 1.084 -
Disposals - 1) - - (844) (875)
Impajrment - - - (562) : (562)
Balance at 31 March 2019 382 664 419 1,992 7,056 10,513
Additions - externally purchased - 104 - - - 104
Adgltions - internally developed - - - 1,424 > 1,424
Capitalised. pradict development - -

intarnally developed - - . (1,069) %,069 -
Disposals - ) - - (345) (346)
Impairment - - - (25) - (25)
Balance at 31 March:2020 382 767 419. 2,322 7,780 11,670
Ariortisation and impalrment o
Balarice at 1 April 2018 - 264 2 - 3,166 3,432
Amortisation for the year - 100 3 - 965 1,068
bisposals - (23y - - (843) (866)
Impalrment 382 66 88 - 503 1,439
Balance at 31 March2019 382 407 -93 - 4,191 5,073
Amortisation fdr the year - 96 3 - 789 . 888
Disposals - M - - (345) (346y
Impairment - 3 3 - 33 39
Balance at 31 March 2020 382 505 99 - 4,688 5,654
Nét Book Value : ) )
At 1 April 2018 382 354 414 2,059 3,650 6,859
At 31 March 2019 - 257 326 1,992. 2,865 5,440
At 31 March 2020 - 262 320 2,322 3,112 6,016
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17  INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT TESTING

The inteliectual property rights of the ‘company are:deemed to have an indefinite useful life' on the basis of
‘the expected longevity. of the brand nanies. The assets of Jaguar Land Rover Limited are considered for the

Jisk of impairment annually and the recoverable amounts of Indefinite iife assets, oomprlslng Intellectual

property rights .and goodwill, -and intangible assets' not yet available for use have been meastired. in

accordance with 1AS 36.

The directors are of the view the assets of the:comipany represent a single Cash Generating Unit.('caU?).

In response to. the:annual requirement of IAS 36, and the economic impact of COVID-19, management
performed an impairment assessment on the assets of the company as at 31 March 2020.

The recoverable value of £8,463 million was determined using the value in use (*VIU") approach cutlined in
IAS 36. The recoverable amount' was lower than the. carrying: valué of the CGU, and this resulted in an
impairment chargée of £108. million (2019: £3,089 million) belng recogniséd in the finariclal statements of
Jaguar Land Rover Lifited as at 31 March 2020. The impairment loss has beén allocated oh a pro-rated
basis. This has resulted’in -£44 million ailocated against tangible assets and £64 milllon allocated: against
intangible-assets.

The company-cansidered it appropriate to undertake the impairment assessment with. reference to the latest
business plan that was in effect as at the reporting date: This plan has been updated fo reflect management’s
best estimate of the impact of all relevant adjusting post balance sheet -events, with -consideration given to
those arising due to the economic impact of COVID-19. The business plan indudes a five-year cash flow
forecast and -contains -growth rates that are primarily a function of the Cycle Pian :assumptions, historic
performance and management’s ‘expectation of future market developments through to 2024/25. n
forecasting the future cash flows management have-given due consideration to the risks that have arisen
-due’to the current economic uncertainty.

The company has assessed the impact of COVID-19 and updated the cash flow forecast to reflect the latest
Cycle Plan changes, iricluding investment spend and new vehicle volume forecast. Additionally, the ‘cohripany
has-assessed the potential risk of a imore $evere impact due to COVID-19 on volume in the short-term.

‘The potential impact of this reasonably posslble outcome of a shart-term .volume reduction and slower
recovery has been inciluded in the: VIU calculations through an adjustment.in the discount rate.

The directors’ approach and key assumptions used to determirie the CGU VIU were as follows:

Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period - calculated based on the weighted average long-
term GDP forecasts based on the Jaguar Land Rover Automotive plc’'s geographical sales footprint;

Discount rate -the discount rate is calculated with reference to'a weighted average cost of capital (WACC)
calculated by reference to an mdustry peer graup. Inputs include risk-free rate, equity risk premium and risk
adjustments‘based on company:specific risk factors (ncludmg risks associated with uncertainty in relation to
the short-term impact of COVID-18, Brexit and possible US'tariffs;

Forecast vehicles volumes — the 5-yeéar volumes have been validated against industry standard external
data for market segment and geography and adjusted to reflect historical experience and latest.Cycle Plan
-assumptions;:

Terminal value variable profit — the 5-year variable profit forecasts afe comprised of révenus, variable
marketing,: warranty costs, material costs-and other variable costs. These values-have been validated-against
historical performance rather than Internal targets and adjustedf for execution risk by further constraining cash
flow estimates. The business has a range of vehicles and models at different-stages:in their product lifecycle.
This.variability drives different contribution fevéls for-each product throughout the assessment period: When
considering the cash flows.to model Into perpetulty, it.is therefore necessary to derive a steady-state variable
profit value based on'the 5-year volume set and associated implied variable profit levels

Terminal value selling gerieral and administrative (SG&A) expenses — SG&A -expenses comptise a
‘combination of fixed and variable costs and are subject to ambitious current business plans. For the.5-year
cash flow forecasts the ambition has been constrained by ad}ustlng cashflows to reflect historical levelsi.e.
‘niot including all of management’s'planned actions for continued cost control. The terminal value assumption
‘is held at similar levels to the 5:year forecast period;
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Terminal value capital expenditure — the S-year cash flows timing and amount-are prepared based on the
latest Cycle Plan.. The terminal value has been derived based the directors best estimate of a maintenance
levets of capital expenditure which has been derived fram .depreciation and amartisation expectations-and
‘longer—terrn trends which are mcluded in theVIU calculation. Expenditure on new.models is excluded as
*expansionary capital” iinless expendrture is committed.and substantively incurred as at'the reporting date.

Cash generated attributable to fellow JLRApIc Group eritities — JLRL makes salés to its subsuilary
companies and fellow group undertakings in accordance with the JLRAplc Group's trarisfer pricing policy:
Far the purposes of assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU, cash flows are. adjusted 1o reflect market
prices rather than internal transfer prices. The' proportion of the free cash flow that would be- generated by
fellow JLRAplc Group entities using market rate prices is deducted from the total cash generated by the
CGU.

in the yéar ending 31 March 2019 an impairment loss was recorded and therefore the:recoverable amount
of the CGU was equal to.its carrying amount.

‘Key assumptions

The key assumptions.that impact the value in use are those that (l) involve a significant amount of judgement
and estimation and (i) drive significant changes to the recoverable amount when flexed under reasonably
possible outcomes. As a significant portion of the recoverable amount lies in the VIU terminal value,
management have focused disclosures an reasonably possible changes thatimpact theterminal value.

Given the ‘inherent uncertainty about -how risk may arise, and the interaction ‘of volumes and cost.
management, managemerit censider:a hetimpact on tarminal period. cash flows to be the best means of
Indicating the sensitivity of the model to 'such changes in the.terminal period.

The value of key assumptions used to calculate the recoverable-amount:are as follows:

Growth.rate applied beyond approved forecast period 1.9%: 1.9%

Post-tax discount rate ‘ 10.4% 9.7%
Terminal value-variable profit (%GVR) 19.7% _ 22.6%
Terminal value capital expenditures (%GVR) ‘ 8.1% 11.0%
Cash generated attributable: fo fellow JLRApIG Group entities 18,7% nia

The changes in the following table to assumptioris used in the impairment review woild, in |solat|on. lead to
an Incréase to the aggregate group Impairment loss recognised as at 31 March 2020 (although it should be.
noted that these sensitivities- do not take accourit of potential ‘mitigating. actions). This would increase the'
impairment loss allocated to assets of the company.accordingly..

Decrease in growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period by 0.5% 468
Increase in post-tax discount rate by 0.5% ' 580
Decrease in terminal value variable profit by 1% 533
Increase In-terminal value capital expenditures by 1% 172

Increase’in assumed % of cash generated atfributable to-fellow JLRApl¢ Group éentities 104
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17 INTANGIBLE -ASSETS (CONT]NUED).
Disclosures for the year ended 31 March 2019

In the impairment assessment performed by Management as at:31 March 2019, the recoverable value was
determined based on value in use ("VIU"),*which was margihally higher than the fair value less cost of
disposal ("FVLCD") of the re!evant assets of the CGU. The recoverable.amount was lowerthan the camrying
value of the CGU,and this resulted in an exceptional impairment chafge of £3,089 mitlion being recagnised
within in the-year ended 31 March 2019. ’

The impairment loss of £3,089 niillion has been allocated initially “against goodwill of £382 million and
thereafter the residual amount has been allocated on-a prorated.basis. This has resulted in £1,088 million
-aliocated against tangible assets and £2,001 miflion allocated against intangible assets. .



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18  DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Year ended.31 March 2020
Deferred tax assets
Property, piant & equipment

. JaguarLand Rover Limitc
Anail répodt and finandial statemen
Far the year erided 31 March 20;

512 512 142 - 654
Derivative financial instruments 134 134 (15) (55) 6 7
Compens_afted absence and retirement benefits 116 116 52 (167) 1
Tax loss 53 53 155 - - 20€
Research-and development expenditure credit 123 123 19 - 142
Total deferred tax asset 938 ‘938 353. (222) 6 1,075
.Deferred tax liabllitles
Intanglble assets (864) (864) (193) - - (1,057
Provisions, allowances for doubtful receivables (5) (3) (3) - - (6
Cormpensated.absence and retirement benefits - - (77) - - a7
Total deferred taxilability. (869) (867) (273) . (1,140
Net deferred tax asset/(Hability) 69 . 80’ ‘(222) 6 (65
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18 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Year ended 31 March 2019
Deferred tax assets:

Property, plant & equipment » 6 - 6 506 - - - 512
Derivative financial instruments 80 6 86 6 18 23 134
Compensated absences.and retiremiefit benafits 85 - 85 (6) 37 - 116
Tax loss 345 - 345 (292} - - 53
Research and developmeént'expenditure credit 97 - 97 26 - - 123
Total deferred tax asset 613 6 619 240 56 23 938
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible. assets (1,072) - (1,072) 208 - - (864)
_Provisions, allowantes for doubtfui receivables (1) - (1) (4) - - (5)
Total deferred tax liability (1,073) - (1,073) 204 - - (8689)
Net deferréd tax (liability)/asset {460) 6 (454) 444 56 23 69

At 31 March 2020, the company had unused tax losses and other temporary differences amounting to £4,429 million (2019; £4,441 million) for which no deferred ta
‘asset has.been provided. As af 31 March 2020 £nii (2019: £nil) of those tax losses are subject fo expiry.in future periods, All deferred tax assets and deferred tax.
liabilitles at 31 March 2020 and 31 March-2019 are presented as non-current, ’
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and .cash equivalénts consist-of the following:

Cash and cash equivalents ' 1,869.

20 ALLOWANCES FOR TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Changes in the allowances for trade and other recejvables are :as follows!

At beginning of year 7 47
Charged during the year .8 3.
Ufilised during the year 3) (40).
Unused amounts. reversed .(6) -
Foreigh' cuitency tianslation = 3)
At end of year 4 6 7

21 INVENTORIES

Raw-matetlals and consumables 87 115

Work in progress 384 *363
Finished goods ‘ 1,514 1,348
JInventory basis adjustmient (1) {8)
Total inventories 1,982 1,818

Inventaries -of finished goods include: £370 million (2019:.£370 ‘million), relating to vehicles sold to rental
car oompanles fleet customers and others with guaranteed repurchase arrarigements.

The cost of inventories (including cost.of purchased products) recognised as an expense during the year
amounted to £15,280 million (2019: £15,996 million).

During the: year, the company recorded an inventory wnte~down expense of £23 milllony (2019: £52: million).
The write-down is included in ‘Material and other cost.of sales’.
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22  OTHER ASSETS

a

Non-current assets

Prepaid expenses 6. 83
Other 15 =
Total non-current other:assets 21 83
Current assets
Recoveérable: VAT 112 156
Prepaid expensés 85 86
Research and development credit 85 143
_ Other 27 5
Total current othier assets 309 360

23 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Trade payables 3,462 4130
Liabilities for expenses 544 483
Capital creditors 621 708
_ Liabilities. to employess 111 g2
Total accounts payable 4,738 5,413

24 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Short-ferm borrowings

Loans 3,779 3,631
Short:term borrowihgs ‘ 3,779 3,631
Long-term borrowings

Loans 4,818 3,599
Long-term borrowings 4,818 3,599
Lease obligations: 231 -
Total borrowings 8,828 7,230

Included within short-term borrowings are. amounts due to parent and subsidiary undertakings of £3,679
million (2019: £3,517 milfion) and includéd within long-term borrowlngs: are amounts due to parent and

subsidiary unhdertakings of £4,804 million (2019: £3,599 million)..
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24  INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The contractual cash.flows of interest bearing. debt and borfowings as of 31 March 2020-and 31 March
2019 are set out below, inciuding estimated interest payments and assuming the-debt will be repald at the
maturity date.

Due-in

1year of less 4,117 4,588
2nd-and 3rd years : 2,039 1,011
4th and 5th-years 2,145 1,696
‘More than 5 years 1,441 1,559
Total contractual cash flows. 9,742, © 8,854

Durifigthe year ended 31 March 2019, the company entered into a.$700 milllon factored receivables faoxllty
that éxplres’in 2021. Urider the terms of the facllity, the company de-:ecogmses factored receivables in
accordarice with IFRS 9-as'there are no recourse arrangerents.

Fleet financing facility

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the company entered into a secured revelving. loan facility letter
dated 25 Ocfober 2019 with Black Horse Limited, with'an-aggregate priricipal aniount of £100- million. The
facility is secured by a floating charge over inactive own-use. (OUVs) vehicles.

25 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Current.
Iriterest accrued 62 35
Derivative financial instruments 453 523
Liability for vehicles sold under a repurchiase arrangement 397 363.
Lease obligations 45 -
Other - 4.
" Total current other financial liabilities 957 925
Non-current
Derivative financial instruments 310 281
Lease-obligations 186 -
Other- A 1 2

Total nori-current other financial liabilities 497 283
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26  PROVISIONS

Current

Product warranty 650 610
Legal and product liability 105 136
Provisions: for environmental liability 6. 14.
Other employee benefits obiigations ' 7 13
Restructuring 12 95
Total current provisions: 780 868
Non-current

Product warranty 1,057 950
Legal and product liability . 54 43
Provisions for envifonmental fiabliity _ 17 15
Other employee benefits obligations 12 -
Total non-current provisions 1,140 1,008

Opening.balance - 1,560 179 29 13 95 1,876
Piovision made 'during the year 898 135 14 40 32 1,119
Provision used duting the year (776) (86) (12) 33) (114) (1,021)
».;J:aursed amount released.in the . (70) ®) ) ) (80).
Impact of unwind of discounting -25 C- - - - 25
Foreign currency translation - 1 - - - 1
Closing balance 1,707 189 23 19 12 1,920

PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISION

The company.offers warranty cover in.respect of manufacturing.deféects,. which become. apparent-up to five:
years .aftér purchase, dependent on the market in which the purchase occurred. The estimated liability for
product warranties is.recorded when products. are. sold. These estimates are established using historical
information on the nature, frequency and average. cost of warranty claims and fnanagement estimates
regarding possible future incidences based on actions. on product-failures.- The discount on the warranty
provision is calculated.using a risk-free discount rate as the risks specific to:the liability, such as inflation,
are included-in the base calculation. The timing of outflows will varyas and whefi a warranty claim will arise,
being typically up to eight years. ' )

LEGAL AND PRODUCT LIABILITY PROVISION

A legal and product liability provision is maintained in respect of compliange with regulations and known:
litigations -which impact the company. The provision primarlly relates to motor-accident claims, consumer:
complaints, dealer terminations, employment cases, personal injury claims and compliance with.
regulations. The fiming of outflows will vary as and .when claims are received and settied, which is riot
known with:certainty.

ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITY PROVISION

‘This provision relates to various environmental remediation costs'such as asbestos removal and land clean
up. The timing of when these costs will be incurred is not known with certainty.
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26 PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)

OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .OBLIGATIONS

This provision refates. to the. LTIP scheme for certain employees (see'.h.ote'fs)-ahd other amount§ payable
to employees.

RESTRUCTURING

This provision relates to. amounts payable to employees under the company. restructuring programme:
announced and catried out during the years ended 31 March.2020 and 31 March-2019 (see note 3),

27 OTHER LIABILITIES

Current

Liabilities for advances received. 18 33
Ongoing service obligations 115 109
VAT 10 5
Other : 5 6
Total current ottier liabilities 148 153 .
Non-current

Ongoing service obligations 158 163
Other - 1
Total non-current other liabilities 158 164

28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Allotted, called up arid fully paid
~3,’560,542,073.(2019:_‘3;560,542‘073) ordinary shares of £1 each 3,561 3,561
Total ordinary share capital 3,561 3,561

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to recéive dividends as declared from time to time and .are
entitled to one vote pér share at meetings-of tfie company.
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29 OTHER RESERVES
The movement of other reserves is as fallows:

‘Balance as.at.1 April 2019 (506) (33) 2,129 1,590
Adjustment on.initial application of IFRS _ © ©
16 (net of tax) - ()] )]
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2019 (506) (33) 2,120 1,581
Loss for the year - - (656) (656)
Remeasuremént of defined benefit

obligation B i 981 981
Loss on effective cash flow hedges (334) - - {334)
.Gain/{loss) on effective cash flow hedges : '
of inveritory 82 7} - 75
Income tax related to items recognised in . i
other comprehensive: income 51 1 (167) (115)
Cash flow hedges reclassified to forelgn - - " , -
exchange in profit or loss 574 (8) B 563
Income tax related to jtems reclassified to . A P
profit or loss: (109) -2 - (107)
Ameounts remaved from hedge feserve P 2y
and recognised in inventory’ (48) 15 - (33)
Income tax related to amouints removed

from hedge reserve and recognised in : 9 (3) - 6
inveritory . .

Balance as at 31 March 2020 (284) 33) 2,278 1,961

Balance as at 1 April 2018 (282) " (46) 5,828 5,500
Adjustrment on initial application of IFRS 9 i ‘ (AN 37
and IFRS 15 (net of tax) (29) 2 “4) (31)
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018 (313) (a4) 5,824 5,469
Loss forthe year - - (3,464) (3,464)
Remeasurément of defined benefit ‘ '
obligation s ) (268) (268)
{Loss)/gain on effective cash flow hedges (812) 24 - (788}
Loss on effective cashflow hedges of . B :
inventory (161) (36) ¢ 9?')
Income tax related to items recagnised in "
other comprehensive income t84 2 37 22
Cash flow hedges reclassified to foreign a7 . PR
exchange in profit or loss 874 7 881
Income tax related to iteins reclassified to ; ) s
profit or-loss (166) ) (167)
Amounts removed from. hedge reserve (141) 19 _ (122)

and recognised in inventory

income tax related to amounts removed

from hedge reserve and recognised in 27 4y - 23
inventory

Balance as at 31 March 2019 (506) (33) 2,129 1,590
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

30. DIVIDENDS _
No dividends were paid in the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: £nil).

31 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The company operates. defined benefit. schemes for qualifying employees. The defined benefit schemes
are administered by a trustee with assets held in trusts that are legally separated frorh the company. The
trustee of the pension schemes is required by law to act in the interest of the members and of all relevant
stakeholders-in the schemes-and is responsible for the investment policy with regard {o-the assets of the:
schemes and all other govemnance matters. The board of the trustee must be. composed of representatives
of the-.company and scheme participants in ac¢ordance with each schéme's regulations.

Under the.schemes, the employees are entitled to post-retirement benefits based on their length of service
and-salary.

Through. its defined benefit pension- schemes the coinpany is exposed to a number of risks, the - most.
significant of which are. detaited. below:

Asset volatility

The schemes" liabilities are calculsted using a-discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields; if’
schemes' assets underperform these corporate. bonds; this will create orincrease a deficit: The defined
benefit schemes hold; a significant proportion of equity-type assets, which are ‘expected to autperform

.carporate bonds in the fong.term although introducing volatility and risk.in the short tefm,

The schernes hidld a substantial level of index-linked gilts-and other inflation and interest rate. hedging

instruments In otder to reduce the volatiiity of assets. compared to-the-liabllity value, atthough these will lead
to-asset value volatility,

As the schemes mature, the company intends to. reduce the level of investment risk by investing more in
assets:for which expected income is a better match for the expected benefit outgo.

Howevar, the company believes that due to the long-term nature-of the schemes’ liabilities snd the strength
of the suppomng compahy, a level of continuing equity- type Investments is currently-an appropriate-element

-of the:company's long-term strategy to manage the schemes efficiently.

Changes in bond ylelds

A decrease in comporate bond yields will increase the schemes® liabilities, although. this is expected to be
partlally offset by an ingtease in the value.of the schemes’ assets specifically the bond holdings and interest
rate hedging Instruments

Inflation risk.

Some of the company s-pension obligations-are linked to infiatioh, and higher iriflation will lead to higher
liabilities (although, in most cases; caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect the
scheme agairist extreme Inflation). As noted above the schemes hold a significant proportion of assets-in.
index linked gilts, together with.other inflation hedgmg instrumients, and .also assefs that are more closely
correlated with inflation. However, an increase in inflation may still create a deficit or increase an existing
deficit to some degree.

Life expectancy
The majority of the scheme'’s .obligations are to provide:benefits’ for the life-of the member, so increases in

life expectancy will.result in an increase in the scheme’s Jiabllitles.
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31  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The following tables set Gut the disclosures pertaining to-the retirement berefit amount‘s"réeognised in the
financial statements-prepared in accordance with 1AS 19:

‘Change in present value of defined benefit:obligation

%

Defined benefit-obligation beginning of the year 8,607 8,285
Current sefvice cost ‘ 130 155
Past service cost 4 42
Interest expense 203 215
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from:

Changes in.demograghic assumptions 7 (49)

Changes In financial assumptioris (523) . 54

Experience adjustments (139) 32
Member contributions 1 1
Benefits paid (543) (615)
Defined benefit obligation at.end of year , 7,747 8,607

Change in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 7,967

Interest income. ' 190 207
Remeasurement gain an the return of plan assets, excluding amounts 326 256
included in interest income- o
Administrative-expenses (16) (13)
Employer contributions 230 261
Members coritributions 1 1
Benefits pald {543) {615)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 8,155 7,967

The actual return on plan assets fof the year was'£516 million (2019: £463 million).
Amounts recognised-in the. income statement consist of:

Current service cost 130 155

Past sarvice cost 4 42
Administrative expenses 16 13
Net interest cost (including onerous obligations) 13 8
‘Components of defined benefit cost recognised in the income 163 218

. statement




-Jaguar Land Rover-Limited
Amnwel repart ang financist statements.
Fai the year ended 31 March 2020

NOTES TO THE:FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Amaunts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. consist of:

Actuarial (loss)/gain. arising from:

Changes in‘demographic assurnptions (2] 49
Changes in financlal assumptions 523 (541)
Experience adjustments. 139, (32)
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on the.retum of plan assets, excluding 326 2856
-amounts. included in interest inconie
Remeasuremient-gain/(loss) of defined benefit obligation 981 (268)

Amauits recognised in the balance sheet consist of;

As at:31 March (€ millions) - :, . 2020 2019
Present value.of funded defined benefit obligations {7,747) {8,607)
Fair vajue of plan-assets 8,165 7,967
Net retirement benefit obligation ' 408: (640)
Presented.as non-current asset 408 -
Presented as hon-current liability - (640)

The most recent valuations of the defined benefit schemes for accounting purposes were carried cut at31
March 2020 by a qualified mdependent actuary The present value, of the defined behefit liability, and the
related-current service cost and past sérvice cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.
The asset valuations are taken' from the asset custodian for each scheme together with the balanceof the.
Trustee.bank accounts.

Benefits accruing for active members of the. schemes are:revalued each year whilst in service in line with
CPI inflation plus 0:5% per annum, but capped at.2. 5% - this level of increase Is referred to as “CARE
revaluahon As at KN March 2020 based on advlce from our actuarial adwsor Mercer, the company

......

mﬂatlen volatimy ‘and the level of the cap. The revised mudel Is in fine with the ams(mg model used for
increases to pensions in payment.

In"addition, in-order to reflect potential changes in future RPI (related to the ‘Government's consultation on
RPI Refornt), the assumed difference between RPI and CP{ inflation was reduced from 1% p.a. to 0.75%.
paa.

The combined impact of the two inflation related changes noted above was to reduce the schemes” labllity.
by-£91 milfion.

The principal assumpfions used in accountirig for the penslon plans arée set out below:

Yearended 33.March (%) ~ - ‘ o - 2020 - 2019
Discount rate 24 24
‘Expected rate of increase in compensation level of ¢overed employees 20 24
Inflation increase: 2.6 32

whilsi salary inflation Is no longer Used in the calcylation of the Projected. Benefit Obligation or:service cost the company's assumption
for this, on_average over.the mediim tefm; has reduced from CPi +0.5% to CPI as at31 March-2020,
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For the valuation at 31 March 2020, the mortality assumptions used are the Self-Administered Pension
Schemies (SAPS) mortality base lable in‘particular S2PxA tables (“Light” tables for members of the Jaguar
Executive Pension Plan).

For the Jaguar Pension Plan, scaling factors of 111 per cent to 117 per. cent.have been used for male
members.and scaling factors.of 101 per centto 112 per cent have been used for female-membérs.

For the Land Rover Penslan Scheme, scaling factars of 107 per cent to 111 per cent have been. used for
male members and scaling factors-of 101 per cent to 109 per ¢ent have been ‘used for fernale miembers.

For the. Jaguar Executive Pension.Plan, an average scaling factor of_:94 per cent has been used for male
members and an average-scaling factor of 84 per cent has been used for female members,

Far the valuation.at 31 March 2019, the mortality assumptions used were the SAPS moftality base:table,
in parllcular S2PxA tables ("Light” tables for members of the Jaguar Executive Pension Plan).-

For the Jaguar Pension Plan; scaling factors.of 112 per:cent to 118 per cent have been used for male
members and scallng factors. of 1071 per céntto.112-per-cent have been used for female members..

For the Land Rover Pension Scheme, scaling:factors of 107 per cent'to 112 per cent have been used for
male members and scaling factors of 101 per cent to 109 per cent have -been used for female riembers.
For the Jaguar Executive Pension Plan, an average.scaling factorof 94 per cent has been used for male
members and an average-scaling factor of 84 per cent has been used for female members.

For the 2020 year end calculations there is an allowance for.future improvements In line with the CM! (2019)
projections:and an allowance for long-term improvements of 1.25 per cent per annum and'a smoothing
parameter of 7.5, (2019: CMI {2018) projections with 1.25 per cent per ‘annum Improvements ‘afid a
smoothing parameter of 7.5),

The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

" Valuation at 31 March.(vears). ‘ 2020 . 2019
Retiring today:
Males, 21.0 21.0
Females 23.2 232
‘Retiring in 20 years:
Males 22.5. 224.
Famales 25.2 25.1

A past service cost of £4 million has been recogrised in'the year ended 31 March 2020. This reflacts benefit
improvements. for certain mernbers as part of the company restructuring rogramme..

A past service cost'of £42 million was récognised in the year ended 31 March 2018. This reflects benefit
improvements for certain members as part of the company's restructuring. programme and a past sernvice
‘cost following a High Court ruling in October 2018. As a result of the ruling, pension schemes are required
to equalise male-and’ female members’ benefits for the inéqualities within guaranteed minimum pension.
(GMP) earned betweén 17 May 1990 and S April 1997. The company historically made. no assumptions for
the equalxsah_on of GMP and therefore considered the change to be a plan amendment:

The sensitivity analysis below Is based on-a ¢hange.in an assumption while hoiding all other assumptions.
constant. In"practice; this is unlikely to occur, and changes in saimé of the assumptions may be correlated.

When calculating the sensitivity of the defined bénefit obligation or riet pension asset to significant actuarial
assumptions, the safe method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected.
unit credit method at the end of the reporting penod) has been applied as when calcuiating the pension
llablhty fecoghised within'the balance sheet. -
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The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sepsitivity analysis did ot chahge compared
to.previous periods,- )

lrnpact on.schéme -

As.;umptm- Change.in assumiption: Tiabliities. - lmpgq;:on.ggr.vlcg.gp'st;: .
N Inérease [ deciease by Decreasefincrease by Decréasefincrease by £7
Discountrate  55o ¢.£390 million million.
I Increase / decrease by Increase/decreass by c£230 Increase/decrease by £3
Inflation rate .55 million fmillion
increase / decrease by 1 Increasefdecrease by c.£280 Increasefdecrease by £4

Mortality year million million
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The fair value of plan assets is represented by the following major categories:

'E'du'ity instruments

Information technology 124 - 124 2%. 79 -. 79 1%
Energy ' 10 - 10 % 34 - 34 %
Manufactiiring 70 - 70 1%: 58 - 58 1%
Financials 45 - 45 1%, 81 - 91 1%
Other 248 - 248 3% 251 - 251 3%
497 - 497 6% 513 - 513 6%
Debt instruments ' o
Government 1,941 - 1,941 24%. 2,504 - 2,504 32%
Corporate Bonds 1,243 347 1,590 19% 149 1,691 1,840 23%.
(investnient grade) ‘ '
Corporate bonds (Non - 749 749 9% - 612 612 8%
investment.grade)
3,184 1,096 4,280 52% 2,653 2;303 4,956 63%
Property funds
UK - 272 272 3% - 244 244 3%
Other - 239 239 3% < 229 229 3%.
- 511 511 6% - 473 473 6%
Cash and cash 677 - 877 8% 210 - 210 ‘3%
equivalents
Other
Hedge Funds - 474 474 6%. - 309 309 4%
Private Markets - 561 561 7% 4 335 339 4%
Alternatives - 593 593 7% 15 808 823 10%
- 1,628 1,628 20%. 19 1,452 1,471 18%
Derivatives
Foreign exchange" - (35) (35) -%. - 16 16 -
contracts
Intergst rate and - 545, 545 % - -328 328. 4%
inflations
Equity protection - 52 52 1%. - - - -
derivatives
- 562 562 8% - 344 344 4%
Total 4,358 3,797 8,155 100% 3,395 4,572 7,967 100%

*Quoted prices for identical asséls or liabilities in active markets.

As at 31 March 2020, the schemes held Giit Repos. The net.value of these transactions is included.in the.
value of government bonds in.the table above. The value of the: fundmg abligation forthe Repo transactions
is-£2,639.million at.31 March-2020 (2019: £1,528 miillion).

Due to the economic effects of actions taken in response to the COVID-19 disease there is-a higher degree.
of uncertainty in the valuations placed on some-of the "unquoted” assets:including praperty assets. In'same
cases the additional uncertainty-will be small, however seme managers have reported material uncertainty
in their valuations. The directors consider these valuations to be the best estimate.of the valuation ofthese
investments, butthere is a hlgher degree of uncertainty compared to previous years:
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31 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Private Equity holdings- have been measured using the most recent valiations, adjusted for cash and
currency maovements between the last valuation date and 31 March 2020. The latest valuations for these
-assets precede the negative impactiof the: COVID-19 pandemic on financial markets: Givéri the movements

in listed equity markets, the valuation of Private Equity hojdings may vary significantly. The value of the
Private Equity: haldings.included abave is £342 million as at-31 March 2020.

Jaguar Larid Rover contributes towards the UK defined benefit schemes. The 5 April 2018 statutory funding
valuations were completed In December 2018. As a result of these valuations it is intended to eliminate the
pension scheme funding deficits over the,10.years to 31 March:2028. There is-currently no additional liability
over-the projected benefit.obligation (based on current legal advice the:company:will not be required to
recognisé an additional obligation in thefuture) and no restrictions on the company’s abllity to realise any
surplus in the scheme. The company has taken legal advice considering the documentation of tfie schemes
and the reguilatory environment, This confirmed the recoverability of any sutplus in: the schenites and the
cormpany has based its accounhng judgement-on this advice.

In line with the schedule of contributions agreed foilowing:the 2018 statutory-funding valustions, the cuirent
ongoing company contribution rate for defined benefit accrual has redisced t0.c.21 per cent of pensicnable
salaries reflecting the 2017 benefit restructure.

Deficit contributions.are paid in.line with the schedule of contributions at a:rate of £60 million per year until
31 March 2024 followed by £25 million per.year unil- 31 March 2028, althaugh as part of company's
response to: the COVID-19 disease the. company has agreed-to defer.all of its contributions, payable for
April, May and June 2020, Until the year ending 31 March 2022. This agreement is réflected in an updated
Schedule of Contnbutlons dated 29 April 2020,

The average duration of the- benefit obligations at 31 March 2020 is 19.0-years (2019: 19:0 years).

The-expected nét perlodic pension cost for.the year ended 31 March 2021 js.expeitted to'be £140. million.
The company expects to pay £160 million to its defined benefit schemes, in-total, for the year ended 31
March 2021 (allowing for the deferral),

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES

The company’s contribution to defined contribution schemes: for the year ended 31 March 2020 was £80
million (2019: £88 miilion).

32 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the nomnal colirse”of business, the company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The
compdhy assesses. such claims and assertions and monitors.the legal environmeit on ‘an ongoing basis,
with the assistance of exterhal legal counsel wherever necessary. The company records a liability for any
claims where a potential loss is probable-and capable of being estimated and discloses such mattersin-its
financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered possible, but nat probable, the:
company provides disclosure in its financial statements but does .not-record a' liability unless the loss
‘becomes probable. Such potential losses may be of an uncartain timing and/er amount.

The. following is a description of claims and’ contingencies Where a- potential loss is possible, but not
prebable. Management believes that none. of the contingencles described ‘below, elther individually-or In-
aggregate, would have a material adverse éffect on the company's financlal condition, results of operations.
aor cash flows. '

LITIGATION AND PRODUCT RELATED: MATTERS

The company is involved in legal proceedings, both as plaintiff and as defendant. There are claims and
potential claims:of £20 million (2019: £7 million) -against the company which management has not-
recognised, as settfement is not considered probable. These claims and petential claims pertain to motor
accident claims, consunter complaints; employment and dealership arrangements replacement of parts of-
vehicles and/or compensaﬁon for-deficiency in the services by the company orits dealers.
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The company has provided for the estimated cost of répair followirig the passenger safety airbag issue in
the United States, China; Canada, Korea, Australia and Japan. “The company recagnises that there is a
potential risk of further recalls in the future, however, the company is unable at this point in time to reliably
estimate the amount aid timing of ‘any potential futiire costs associated with this warranty issue.

COMMITMENTS

The conipany has entered into various contracts with vendors and contractors: for the acquisition of plant
and machinery, equipmentand various civil cantracts-of capital nature aggregating to £1,184 million (2019:
£1,006 milllon) and £10 million (2019: £20 million) relating to the acquisitionof Intangible assets.

Commitments and contingencies also. includes £186 million (2019: £211 million) relating to contractual
claims-and commitments. The timing of any outflow will vary as and when glaims are received and settled,
whichi is not known with certainty.

The remaining financial commitments, In particular the purchase comimitments. and guarantees, are of a
magritude typical for the industry.

Inventory of £127 miilion (2019; £nil).and trade receivables-with a carrying amount of -£nit (2019: £114
million) and property, plant and equipment:with a. carrying amount of £nil (2019: £nil) and restricted cash
with a carrying amount of £nil (2019: .£nil} are pledged as collaterallsecunty against.the borrowings .and
commitments.

Comniitments related to leases are:set out in‘'note 35.

Stipulated within the 10|nt venture agreement for Chery Jaguar Land Rover Autormotive Co. Lid, and
subsequently amended by a change 10 the Articles of Asseciation.of Chery Jaguar Land Rover Automotive.
Co: Ltd. is a commitment-for the company to contribute a tofal of CNY 2,500 million of caplta! of which CNY
1,738 million has béen contributed as at 31 March 2020 The outstanding commitment of CNY. 762 nillion
translates- to £87 million at the ‘31 March 2020 exchange rate. At 31 March 2019, the outstariding
comiittnent: was CNY 1,062 million (£122 million at period end exchange rates) restated to reflect an
additional CNY 750 million that was committed during the year ended.31 March 2017.

Any litigatiofis and claims against-Jaguar Land Rover Limiited are considered to be the responsibllity of the
company which settle these as-appropriate. No amounts were recharged by the ‘corripany for the years’
ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

The company-provides certain guarantees for financing and.other ‘arrangements where the likelihaod of
demand on the guarantee is deemed remote. The financing arrangements.covered by such guarantees are
explained below.

The company’s intermediate parent, Jaguar Land Rover Automotive plc, has issued Senlor Notes that are
listed on‘the Luxembourg Stock Exchange multllateral trading faclllty ('EURO MTF’) market. The compariy
i§ a guarantor with Jaguar Land Rover Holdings. Limited.of ceftaif of these Senior. Notes The franches of
Seriior Notes oufstanding at 31 March.2020 are as follows:

£400 mililon Seriior Nates due-2022 at a coupon of 5.000% per-annum
-£400 million SéniorNotes due 2023-at a coupori of 3.875% per annum
-€650 million Senior Notes due 2024 at.a coupon of 2.200% per anfiurm
£300 million Senior Notes due 2021 at a coupon of 2.750% pef aninum
.$500. mitlion Senior Notes-due: 2027 at a coupon of 4.500%: per annum
€500 million Senior Notes due 2026 at-a coupon of 4.500% per annum
€500 filliori Senlor Notes'due 2024 at a coupon of 5:875% per annum
€500 ritillion Senior Notes due 2026 at a coupon.of 6:875% per annum

© 0 © © 06 ¢ 0 O
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The company is a guarantor with Jaguar Land Rover Holdings Limited, Jaguar Land Rover Narth America
L.LC, Land Rover Exports Limited-and JLR Nofninee Company. Linited of $500 million Senior Notes due
.2023-at a coupon of 5,625% per annum.

“The company is a guarantor of a $1 billich syhdicate ioan with a coupon rate of LIBOR+ 1.900 per cent
per annum, issued in October 2018 and due in the following tranches:

s $200 milfion due October 2022

s $800 millliori due January 2025

In addition, the company is a guarantor with Jaguar Land Rover Holdings Limited of the £1,935 million
revolving credit facility held by the intermediate parent-company, Jaguar Land Rover Automotlve plc..As at
31 March. 2020 this facility was fully undrawn.

33  CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The company's objectwes when managing capital are to. ensure the. going. concem operation of all

subs(diary companies and to maintain an.efficient capital structire to support ongoing and future operations
of the. company and to meet shareholder expectations.

The company issues debt, primarily in the form of loans fo other group companies, to: meet . anticipated
funding. requlrements and maintain syfficlent liquidity. The. campany also' maintains ceHain undrawn.
committed credit facilities to- prov:de additional liquidity. These borrowings, togethier with cash generated
from operations, are loaned internally or contributed as equnty to certain subsidiaries as required. Surplus
cash in subsidiaries is pooled (where practicable) and’ invested to satisfy security, fiquidity and yietd
requirements.

The capital structure and funding requirements are regularly monitored by the:Board of Directors to ensure
sufficient fiquidity is maintained by the company: All debt issuance and capital distributions are approved
by the Board of Directors. In addition, the, covenant reiated to the financing arrangements Is regularly
monitored and comipliance is certified annualhly

The following table summarises the capital of the company:

As at 31-March (€ millions) . : 2020 - 2019
‘Shortsterm debt 3,824 3,631
Long-term debt 5,004 3,599
Total debt* 8,828 7,230
Equity . 5,522 5,151
Total capltal 14,350 12,381

*Total debt iricludes lease obligations of £231 million (2019: £nif).

34  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

‘Thiis. section gives an overview of the s1gniﬁcance of financial instruments far the: -company and ‘provides
additional lnformatmn on’'balance sheet items that contain financial instrurmerits.

The detalls of significant accounting policies, neluding the criteria for.recognition, the basis of measurement
-and the basis on which income and expehses are recogmsed in respect of each class of financial asset;
finaricial liabllity- and equity instrumint are disclésed in note 2:
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34  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(A) FINANCIAL ASSETS.AND LIABILITIES
The following table shows the carrying amourit and falr value of each category of financial asséfs and

liabilities as at.31"March.2020:

For the yeat smted 31 March:2020

" Fair value ('hrough ‘profit and o

. ‘foss o o
Amortised Derivatives in .Der_i\!,atlves : " ‘Total.-  Totalfair

- cost and’ hgdgmg otherthanin: - carrylng value

(€ -millions) ~ ottier relationship hedging value
' financial relationship
- liabilities - - :

Cash .and cash.equivalents 1,869 - - 1,868 1,869
Short-term deposits and other 1,326 . _ 1,326 1,326
investments o :
Trade receivables 1,118 - - 1,118 1,118
Other financlal assets - current 1,926 88 153 2,167 2,167
Other financia) assets-- non- 104 133 9 246 246
current
Total financial assets 6,343 221 162 6,726 6,726
Accounts payable 4,738 . . 4,738 4,738
Shoit-term borrowings 3,779 - - 3,779 3,763
Long-term borrowings* 4,818 - s 4,818 3,859
Othe; financial liabilities - 504 249 204 957 957
current o
Other'financial ligbilities - hon- 187 262 48 497 497
current .
Total financial liabilities 14,026 511 252 14,789 13,814

'Included inthe long-term barowings shown in other financial Fabilities is-£891 miflion that is designated as the.hedged item in a fair

value hedge reiahonshnp Included within this figure is: £45.milllon of fairvalie adjustments as a result of the hedge ralationship.
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34  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets and
liabilities as at 31 March 2019:

"Eair value throuigh profit
- and loss B
Amortlsed Derwative 51 Derivatives - Total’ ‘Totat fair
L . } cost’ and- " -inhiedaifilg. - other thah - carrying. - - value
(E.millions). . othier: . relatronshlp -in hedgmg . value
S " financlal -+ relationship
_ liabilities. . N o
Cash and cash equivalents. 2,465 : - 2,465 2,465
IS‘:how’(—te)_rm ‘deposits and other 1,028 B R 1,028 1,028
nvestments ;
Trade receivables 2,168 - - 2,168 2,168
Otiver financial assets - current 1,496 102 31 1,629 1,629
Ofther financial assets - rion- 105, 43 11 159. 159
current .
Total financial assets: 7,262 145 42 7,449 7,449
Accourits payable 5,413 - - 5,413 5413
-Stiort-term.borrowings* 3,631 - - 3,631 3,627
Lorg-term borrowings** 3,599 - - 3,599 3,245
Other financial liabilities - current 402 426 97 925 925
Other finangial liabilities - non-. 2 266 18 283 283
_current :
Total financial liabilities 13,047 692 112 13,851 13,493

*Included within short-tarm borowings shown in ather financial liabilties are foreign currency denominated borrawings tataling £768m
designated as tha hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge against-forecast révenue.

**Included in the long-ferm bormawings shown in other. financial liabibties is.£813 million ihat is designated as the. hedged item in a fair
value hedge:-relationship. Inc{uded within this figute’ls £5 million-of fair-valug- ad]ustments as a result of the hedge relatwnshlp

Offsetting

Certain financial assets and fi nancial liabilities -are subject to- offsetting where there is currently a legally
enforceable right to set off recognised amounts and the company intends to either settie.on a net basis ar
to realise the-asset and setftle the liability sumultaneousty

Derivative financial asséts and financial liabilities . are’ subject fo master nettlng arrangements whereby in
the case of insolvency, derivative finaricial asséts and-financlal liabilities can be settled on a net basls.
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The following tabie dxscloses the amounts that have been offset in arriving at the balance sheet presentation
and the amounts: that are. avallabie for- offset only under certain conditions as at 31 March 2020:

Gross. . Net' éi'oss
' Gross - rzr::u:its::l . amount.  amount Cash Net
. o ST 9 ’ “presented not offset  collateral amount
£millions’ | . . amount . . -set: off in- -
hay " inthe: (recenved)l after-
recognised .. the b 3
T Bt st balance pledged  ‘offsetting
: -balance sheet
sheet N

Financial assets
Derivative financial s
asssts 383 - 383 - {3T7) - 6
Cash and cash : , i an ) R
equivaleits 2,579 (710) 1,869 - 1869

2,962 {710) 2,252 377) - 1,875
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial i Yyt
liabilities A - 763 (377) - 386
Short:term } S . A '
borrowings 4,489 (710) 3.7?9 - - 3,779

5,252 (710) 4,542 (377) - 4,165

Thefollowing table discloses the amounts that have-been offsetiin arriving atthe balance shest presentation.
and the amounts that are available- for offset only under certaln conditions as at-31 March 2019: )

Gross Net Gross

amount.of - : "
e _-amount. amount. Cash *-Net .
Emillions a(::zrslt rz::%’;sl:d presented notoffset - collateral " amount -
recoarniised the in'the inthe: (received) after
9 balonce  balance  balance  /pledged offsetting
sheet sheet sheet’ -
Financial assets
géesr'i;/tzﬂve,ﬁnancial 187 ) 187 (187) ) .
Cash and cash 2,803 (428) 2,465 - - 2,465
equivalents - _ _
3,080 (428) 2,652 A87) ; 2,465
* Financial liabilities
Derivative financial ' - 1
liabilities 804 i 804 (187) - 617
Short-tarm borrowings 4,059 (428) 3,631 - - 3,631

.4,883 (428) 4,435 (187) - 4,248
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Fair value hierarchy
Financial instruments held at fair value are required to be measured by reference to the following leveis:

s Quoted prices in an active.market (Level 1): this level of hierarchy includes financial instruments
that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
orliablllties;

s Valuation techniques with observablé inputs {Level 2): this level of hierarchy includes. finangial
assets and liabllities measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are_observable for the.asset or liabillty, eithet directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectiy (i.e. derived from
prices); and

s Valuation techniques. with significant unobservable.inputs (Level.3): this level of hierarchy includes
financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are riot based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). Fair values are ‘detérmined in whole or in-pait using.a valuation model based
on assumptions that are neither supported by prices’ flfom observable’ current market transactions
in.the same instrumeént nor based on available market data.

There has been no change:in the valuation techniques adopted:ar-any transfers between fair value levels,
in either current or pri'or financial perlods -as presented.

The financial instrtuments that are measured subsequent tp initial recognition at fair value are-classified as
Level 2 fair value measurements; as defined by IFRS 13, belng those derived from inputs other than quoted
prices that are.observable. These valuation: techmques ‘maximise.the use of observable market data where
it is.available and rely as: Iltﬁe -as posslble on.entity-specific estxmates Fair values of forward derivative
financial assets and liabiiities are- estlmated by-discoupting expected future contractual cash flows using
prevalling market interest rate curves from Reuters, Commaodity, swap contracts are similarly fair valued by
dlscountlng expected futiire contractual cash fiows. Option contracts on foreign currency are entered into
-on a 26ro cost collar basis and-fair: value estimates are calculated from standard Black-Scholes options
pricing methodo!ogy, using prevailing market interest rates and volatilities: The.estimate of fair values for

cross-currency swaps:is calculated using discounted estimated future cash flows. Estimates of the future
floating-fate cash flows are based on. quoted swap rates, future prices and interbank borrowing rates
(“LIBORY),

Additionally, a credit valuatiofy adjustment/debit value ad;ustment is taken on derivative financial assets and
liabilities and s calcutated by discounting the fair value gain or loss on the-financial derivative using credit
default swap ("CDS") prices quoted for the counterparty of Jaguar Land Rover respectively. CDS prices
are obtained from Reuters.

intercompany loans are held at-amortised cost. The fair value for disclosure purposes.is determined either
using Level 1 valuation techniques, based -on the: closing price as at 31 March 2020 of equivalent bonds on
frie Luxembourg Stock Exchange muitilatera] trading facility-(EURO MTF) market, or Level 2 valyation
techniques.

Fair values.of cashand cash equivalerits, short-term deposits, trade recelvables and payabies, short-term
borfowings and oiher financlal asselts anid- liabilities (current and non-current excliding' derivatives) are
assumed to-appioximate’to cost due to the short-tefm maturing of the mstrumenls -and as.the impact.of
discounting is not significant.

Managemerit uses its best judgement in estlmatlng the fair value-of its financial instruments. However, there
are Inherent limitations -in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantlally all financial instruments,
the-fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of all the amounts that the company
cotild have realised Ina sales transaction-as of the respective dates. The estimated fair value amounts.as
at 31 March 2020 and 2019 have been measured as at the respective dates. As such, the fair values of
these financial instruments subsequent.to the respective reporting dates may be dlfferent than the amounts’
réported at each year end,
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(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -

The company is-exposed to foreign currency exchange rate; commodlty price; inferest rate, ‘liquidity and
credit risks. The company has a risk-management framework in place which moniters all of these Fisks as
_dlscussed below. This framework is approved by the Board of Directors:

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates-may have a potential impact on the i income-statement,
the statement of- ccomprehensive income, the balance sheet, the- statement of changes in equity and the
cash flow staternent, where any transaction references more than one currency or. where -assets/liabilities
are.denominated in a curency other than GBP.

Considering the countries arid economic environmient i which the caompany operates, Its operations are
subject to risks. arising from fluctuations: in exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily refate to
fiuctuations in.US Ddllar, Chmese Yuan and Euro against the functional currency of the company.

Foreign exchange risk on future transactions is-mjtigated through the.use of derivative contracts. In addition
to the derivatives designated in hedging relationships as detailed in (C), the company enters inte foreign
currency contracts as-economic-hedges of recognised foreign-currency debt.

The company is also exposed to fluctuations in exchange rates which impact the. valuation of foreign
curfency denominated assets and Jiabilities on'its balance sheét at.each reporting pariod end.

The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency expesure as at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March’(E'millionsy -  USDollar - - - Euro Chinése'Yuan -~ Others
Finangcial assets 779 2,577 373 241
Financial liabilities (2.664) (4,507) (1,146) (334)
Net exposure - q :

(liability)/asset (1,885) (1,930) (773) (90)

10% appreciation/depreciation

of the ‘currency would result in

additional (loss)/galn:

In the incomie statement (189)1189 (193)1193 (77ye7 (9)/9.

The following table sets forth information relating to fbrei‘gn currency exposure as at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March (£ millions) US Dollar Euro Chinese Yuan ‘Others
Financial assets 2,640 1,910 104. 455

_ Financlal Tiabilities (3,534) (3,415) (1,012) (216)
Net exposure (liability)fasset (894) (1,505) (908) 239

10% appreciation/depreciation

of the currency ‘would result in

additional {foss)/gain:

In other comprehensive o i ) )
income: (7e)i76 Wa
In‘the income statement {13)/13 (151)/151 {91/ h/a
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Comimodity price risk

The company Is.exposed to commodity price Tisk arising fram the.purchase of cerfain raw materials such.
as aluminium, copper, platinum and palladium. This:risk is mitigated through the use of derivative contracts
and fixed. price contracts with suppliers. The. dérivative coritracts are not hédge accounted under IFRS 9
but are instead measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The total fair value loss on commodities. of £74 million (2019: £9 million -gain) has been. fecognised in
“Fateign exchange loss and.fair.value adjustments™ in the income statement: The amounts répoited do not
feflect the purchasing benefi ts recejived by the company (which aré.incieded within "Materlal and other cost:
of sales’).

A 10 per cent appreciation/depreciation of all commodity prices underlying such contracts wotild have
resulted in a gain/loss of £49'million (2019: £53 miliion)..

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is-the tisk that changes in inarket interest rates wiil lead to changes In interest income and
-expense for the company:

In‘addition to.issuing long-term fixed-rate loans, the company has other fagilities in place which are-primarily
used to ﬂnance working capital that are subject to variabie interest rates. When undertaking a new debt
Issuance, the Board of Directors will consider the fixed/floating interest rate mix-of the company, the outiocok
for future inferest rates and the appetite for cettainty of funding costs.

The compdny uses crass-currency Interest rate swaps to. convert some of its’ issued debt from foreign
denominated fixed-rate-debt to GBP fioating-rate debt. The derivative instruments and the foreign cuirency
fixed-rate debt are- designated in fair valie and cash flow hedging relationships. Further detall is given in
section (C) below.-

The risk estimates provided: assume a parallel shift-of 100 basis paints in interest rate across all yield
curves.. This calculation also assumes. that the, chiange occurs at the ‘balance shest date and has been.
calculated based on risk exposures- outstanding as at that date. The year end balances are-not necessarily
répresentative of the average-debt outstanding during the year.

As of 31 March 2020 nét financial liabilittes of £5,039 million {2019: £3; 619 million) ‘were -subject to the
variable interest rate. An increase/decredse of 100 baslis points in interest rates at the- balance sheet date
wouild result in an impact of £50 million (2019: £36 million) in the incomerstatemerit and £nil (2019: £n|l) in
other compreherisive incofme.

The company's sensitivity to interest rates has increased during the current year mainly dueto the increase
in variable-rate debt instruments.

quuldity risk.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the.compaiy will nat be-able to. meet its financial obligations as they:fall due.
The company's policy on liquidity risk isto. maintain sufficient fiquidity In the form of cash fo meet the
company's operating requiremerits with an appropriate level of headroom.
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The following are the-undiscounted contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated Interest

payments:

Financial liabilities

Long-term barrowings’ 4,818 5,828 218 739 ‘3,430 1,441
Shot-term borrowings 3,779 3,789 3,789 - - -
Lease liabilities 231 346 59 79 52 156
Other financial liabilities 460 486 470 12 4 -
Accounts payable 4,738 4,738 4,738 - - -
Derivative financial } - . ,

liabilities 763 894 491 272 131 -
Total contractual : i .
maturities 14,789 16,081 .9,765 4,102 3,617 1,597

Financial liabilities-

Long-term borrowings 3,599 5,186 946 449 2,232, 1{,559'

‘Short-term-borrowings 3,631, 3,631 3,631 - - a

Other financial . .

liabilities- 404 441 413 13 15 -

Accounts payable 5,413 5413 5,413 - - -

Derivative finahicial in ; : .44

labiffies 804 1,076 592 313 144 27

Total contractual . e .

maturities 13,851 1-.5,747 10,995 775 2,391 1,586
Credit risk

Credit risk is‘the risk of financial loss to the company ifa counterparty to a financial instrument fails-to mest
its contractual obllgahon The majority of the compariy’s credit risk pertains to the risk of financial loss
arising-from.counterparty default on cash investments.

The carrying amount of financlial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. None of the i nancual
instruments of the company-result in materlal concentrations of credit risks..

All company cash is invested according to sfrict credit criteria and actively monitored by company Treasury
in conjunction with the .cyrrent market valuation of derivative. contracts. To support this, the Board of
Directors has implemented. an investment policy-which places limits'on the maximum cash investment that
can be made with any single-counterparty depending on theif published external credit rating.

To a lesser extentthe company has an exposure o counterparties on trade receivables. and othef financlal
assets. The company Seeks to mitigate credit risk on sales to-third parties through the.use of payment at
the point of delwary, creditinsurance and letters of credit from. banks which meet internal ra’tmg criterla.

Financial assets

None of the company’s cash equivalents, including term deposits with banks, -are past diie or impaired.
Regarding other financial assets that are neither past.due nor impaired, there were no indications as at: 31
March 2020 or 31 March 2019 that defaults in payment obligations will occur,

The company hds reviewed’ trade and other receivables not yet due and not impaired and no material
issuas havé been identified. Trade and other receivables past due and impaired are set out below:
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As dt:31 March (Emilliois). 2020.Gross .rmpi?fﬁ ent 2019-Gioss - 'mp";?;: ent
Not.yet due 2,765 - "3,198 -
Overdue <3 months 4139 - 282 -
Overdue > 3 < 6 months: 11 1 12 -
Qverdue > 6 months 16 5 38 7
Total 2,931 6 3,530 7

Included within trade receivables is £nil (2019; £114 million) of receivables that are part of a.debt factoring
.arrangement. These assets do not qualrfy for derecognition due to-the recourse arrangements in place. The
related liability of £nil- (2019 £114-mlllion) is in short-term borrowmgs The asset and associated liability-are
classified in-amortised cost and other finandial liabiiities respectively..

Off-batance sheet financial arrangements
At the end of £Y20, the: company has sold £392 million eqtiivalent of receivables undér a $700 million debt

factoring facility signed in March 2019.

(C) DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The coripany’s operations give rise fo revenue, raw material purchases and borrowings in currencies other
than the companys functional and presentation currency -of GBP. The company forecasts these
transactions over the medium term and. énters info. derivative contracts to mitigate the resulting foreign
curreéncy exchange risk, interest rate- risk-and commadity price risk. The company’s risk management’
strategy allows for hedge accounting when the derivatives mest the hedge accounting criteria as set-out in
IFRS 9 as well as the company’s risk management objectives.

Commodity derivatives are ‘not hedgeé. accounted. Forelgn currency forward contract$, foreign currency
options-and foréign currency denominated borrowings. may be designated as hedginginstruments ina cash’
flow hedge relationship against forecast foreigri curréncy transactions to mitigate foreign currency.
exchange risk associated with those transactions..in- addition, the company uses cross-currendy interest
rate swaps.to hedge its-foreign currency exchange risk associated with recognised long-term borrowings.

These instruments:are designated in both cash flow and fair value hedging relationships.

Inall cases the company usés a hedge ratio of 1:1. The critical terms of the denvatlve contracts are aligned
with those of the hedged item. The company allows :a maximum hedging term-of five: years for fore¢ast
transactions. The company's risk ‘management policy atlows for decreasing levels :of hedging as the
forecasting hotizon incréases.

A 10 percent- depret:latlonfappreclatlon in Stefling against thé foreign currency underlyjing contracts within
the company's derivative portfolio that are. sensitive to changes in foreign exchange: rates (including the
impact to the:falr value adjustment of foreign currency borrowings designated as the. hedged itern in a fair
value hedge relationship) would have resulted in the approxxmate additiona! (loss)/galn shown in the
following table:.

As at 31 March (£ milllons) . - e . 2020 . 2019
10% depreclation iri Sterling against the forergn currency‘

In other comprehensive income (547y {273)
in-the income statement: 64 109

10% appreciation in-Sterling against the foreign currency:
In other comprehensive:income 554 244
In the income statement (36) (75)
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The following table sets out the.change'in the company’s exposure to.Interest rate risk as‘a resiilt of cross-
curfency interest rate swaps:

Foreign currency average Reporting currency average
_interestrate, " interestrate
Outstanding contracts 2020 2019. 2020 2019
% % % . %

Cross-currency interest rate

swaps .

Less than one year - - - -
Between one and five years - - - -
“More than five years: 4.500 4.500 LIBOR + 3:235 LIBOR+ 3.235

The. following table shows.the impact that' woulld result from an‘increase/decrease of 100 basls points in
interest rates at the batance sheet date:

As at:31 March (Emillions) - - - : 2020 T 2019
10% depreciation in.Interest rates:
In the income statement {7) (6)
10% appreciation in interest rates:
In the income statement 4 18
Cash flow hedges

The company uses foreign currency options, foreign currency forward :contracts and recagriised foreign
curiency borrowings as the. hedglng instrument in. cash flow hedge ralatlonshlps of ‘hedged sales and
purchases. The time value-of options and ‘the foreign currency basis. spread of foreign exchange forward‘
contracts-are excluded from thie hedge relationship and are recognised in other comprehenswe income as
a-cost of hedging to the-extent they relate to the:hedged item (the aligned value). Additionally, the corhpany
Uses Cross-cumrency: Interest rate swaps as the hedging instrument of the foreign exchange risk of
recognised foreign currency borrowings.

Changes in the fair value of foreign currency contracts, to the extent deteithined to be an effective cash
flow hedge, are recognised in the statement of. comprehensive income, and the ineffective portion of the
fair value change is recognised in the‘income’ staterhent. There is.not generally eéxpected to bé- significant
ineffectiveness from cash flow hedges.

It is anticipated that the hedged sales will take place over the next one to five years, at which time-the
amount-deferred in equity will be reclassified to revenue in the income statement.

Itis anticipated that the hedged purchases will take place over the next ane fo five years, at which time the
amount deferred in equity will be included in the camying amount of the faw materials. On $ale of the
finished product; the amount previously deferred in eqmty and subsequently recogmsed in inventory will be
reclassmed ‘to ‘material and othef cost of. sales’ in the income statement.

The foreign currency borrowings designated as the hedged item mature in January 2026 and October 2027,
at which time the afount deferred in equity will be reclassifiedto the income staternenit.
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The following table sets ot the timing profile of the hedge accounted derivatives:
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As:at:31 March Average stikerste  Neminalamounts e';’g,'(’l‘ig;"f,'t‘i’:s)
Qutstanding contracts. 2020- 2019 . 2020 2019 . 2020 - 2019
' £m £m £m: .£m.
Cash flow hedges of
foreign exchange risk.on.
forecast transactions
Derivative instruments o
Sell- USD 07228  0.6756 1,766 1,584 (167) (187)
Less than one year 0.7649 0.6989 5,098 1,945 (190) (114)
Between one and five years
Sell — Chinese Yuan 0.1086 0.1054 1,601 2,132 (89) (153)
Less.than one year 0.1096 0.1075 1,189 1,289 (20) (43)
Between one and five years
Buy - Euro 0.9109 0.8823 2,635 3,609 1 14
Less than one year - 0.9101 0.9192 3,384 4,030 (17 (73)
Betweer one and five years
Other curréncies 905 1,800 65 2
" Less than.one:year 1,238 882 39 11
Between one.and five-years
17,816 17,281 (348) (543)
Debt instruments
denominated in foreign
currency
Usb
Less than one-year ) 0.7358 ) 736 ) (768)
Between one and five years - - - - - -
. - ‘736 - (768)
Total cash flow hedges of
foreign exchange risk on 17,816 18,017 (348) (1,311)
forecast transactions. ]
Hedges of foreign
exchange risk on
recognised debt
Cross-currency interest
rate-swaps
uUsb
Mare than 5 years 0.7592 0.7592 380 380 57 1
EUR
Mare than 5. years 0.8912  0.8912 446. 446 3 (15)
826 826 60 (4)

The USD.debt instrument used as a hedging instrument is. shown in the less than one year category-above
as the instrument itself mattirés within one year. The amounts hedging revenue between one and five years

are £nil {2019:.£359 miillion).

The line items in the batance sheet that include the above derivative instruments-are“*Other financial assets"
anid "Otheér financial liabllities”. The US denaminated debt designated as a hedging instrament is included

in"“Borrowings”.
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The followmg table sets out the effect of the company's cash flow hedges. on the financia} position of the
company:

Year enided 31'March: (£ illions) : - . 2020 2019
Fair value gainf(less) of foreign currency‘derjvatii/e confracts 254 (887)
recognised in hedging reserves ’ E
Fair value’ galn/(loss) of foreign cuirency borrowings recognised in cash 7 (103)
flow hedging reserve ] g
Falr value (loss)/gain of derivatives hedging foreign currency, @) 4

borrowings. recognised in hedging reserves A :

Gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive inconie in the year 259 (986)
Loss reclassified from cash flow hedgirig reserve and recognised in (565). (870)

'Revenue in the income statement

Loss. reclassified from of cash-flow hedglng reserve and recognised in
‘Materidl and other cost of sales’ in the income statement

(Loss)/galn reclassified from cash flow hedging reserve.and recognised

in ‘Foreign exchange (Ioss)lgaln and fair value- adjustments’ in‘'the } 12)
ihcome statement on account of forecast transactions fio longer 8¢
ex_pected to occur

Gain reclassifled from cost of hedging reserve and recognised in

‘Foreign exchange (loss)/gain.and fair value adjustments’ in the.income 2 4
statement on-account.of farecast transactions no longer expected-fo

oceur

Loss reclassified to profit and loss’in the year (563) (881)
Net change in the hedged.item usedfor assessing hedge effectiveness 172 (202)
Gain/(loss) on derivatives riot hedge-accounted, recognised in ‘Foreigh-

exchange (l0ss)/ gain and fair-value adjustments’ in the.income. 27 (18)
statement.

Fairvalue hedges

The compaiy uses cross-currency interest rate.swaps as the. hedging Instrument in a fair valye hedge of
foreign exchange and interest rate. risks of fore:gn currency denommated debt. The derivatives -convert
foreign currency USD fixed-rate borrowings to. GBP floating-rate debt.

Changes in the fair value of forelgn currency contracts that are designated In. falr vafue hedging
relationships are fecognised in the income statement: Changes in the fair value-of the underlying hedged
item (long-term borrowmgs) for the hedged risks are recognised in'the same income. statement line.
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The fair value. of the cross-curfency interest rate swaps included in “Derivatives in hedgmg relationship” in
section (A} are as follows:

As at:31:March (£ millions) , 2020 . - -2019:

Ofther financial assets — non-current 60 11
Total financial assets 60 11
Other financial liabilities — non-currént- - (f 5)
Total financial liabilities - {15)

The following amounts-have been recoghised in the income statement in the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2019: .

During year ended.31 March (£ millions) 2020 2019
Net change in the hedged item used for assessing hedge effectiveness,

taken to the income statement in “Foreign-exchange loss and fair value (78) (29)
adjustments"

Fair value changes in.the denvative instruments used.in assessing hedge. . )
effectiveness, taken to the.income statement in “Foreign exchange loss 61 22
and fair value adjustments”

Ineffectiveness recognised in the income statement in “Forelgn 17) 7)
exchaige loss and fair value adjustments” !

35 LEASES.
Leases as a Lessee

The company leases many assets - including land and buildings, vehicles, machinery and IT equipment.
information-about leases. for which the company is a lessee is presented below..

Right-of-use assets

Opemng balance at .Apnl‘2019 240 12 a2 T 3 297
Closing balance at 31 March ; .
2020 240 7 37 4 3 291
Depreciation chargefor the year 31 8 14 2 1 56

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the. year ended 31 March 2020 were £46 million.
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Lease liabllities
The maturity analysis of the contractual undiscounted cash flows are as follows:

Less than.one year 59
One to five years 131

More than five years 156
Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at'31 March 346

The-following amounts are:included in the Balance Sheetas at'31 March 2020:

Current leasé liabilities ‘ 45
Non-currerit lease liabilities 186
" Total lease liabilities 231

The following.amaunts are recognised in the income statement far the year ended 31 March 2020:

Interest expeénse on lease liabilities
Expenses related to short-term leases 1
Expenses related to low-value assets, excluding short-term leases of Tow-value asséts . 5

The following amounts are recoghised in the statement:of cash flow for the year ended 31 March2020:

Cash payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities (within’ ‘payments of lease 50
obligations')

Cash payment for interest expense related to laase liabilities (within-finance expenses and 17
fees paid’)

Total cash outflow for leases. 67

Leéases as a Lessee under IAS 17

Non-cancellable operatmg lease rentals are payable as follows:

Less than one year . 67
Between one andfive years 143
More than five years' 93
Total lease payments 303

The company leases a number of buildings, plant and machiinery, IT hardware and software under operating
leases, certain of which have a renewal and/or purchaseeption in the normal course of business.

Lease as.a lessor

The majority of the leases where the company is a lessar. s in.relation to vehicles. The company classified
these as leases-of operating leases, because they do not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards
lnmdental to the ownership of the assets.
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The maturity. analysis .of lease payménts', showing the undiscounted lease payments to be recelved after-
thé reporting date are as follows:

Less than one year 3 3
One tofive yedrs 1 1
More than five years g ]
Total undiscounted lease payments to be recelved 13 13

36 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are defined as components of the company about which separate financial.information
Is available:that js evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision-maker,. or decision-making group, in
deciding how to allocate resources and in-assessing performance.

“The company Gperates in the automotive segment. The dutomotive' segment includes all activities relating
to developmient, design, manuifacture, assembly and sale of vehicles including financing thereof; as well as
sale-of related parts and accessoties fiom:which the company derives its revenues. The company has only
aone operatmg segment, so no- separate segment report is given. The company's rion-current assets, are
situated in the UK.

The geographic spread of sales by customer location is as disclosed below:

"31 March 2020

Revenue 3,434. 4,927 2,541 5,736 3,211. 19,849
31 March 2019 .

Revenug 3,233 5,579 2,932 5,291 3,835 20,870
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{A) RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FOR THE YEAR TO CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Loss fof the year (656) (3.464)
Adjustments for: '
Depreciation and amortisation 1,824 2,099
Write-down of tangible assets: - 18
‘Write-down of investments 18 -
Loss on sale of assets. 16 58
Income tax.credit {52) (408)
Foreign exchange .and fair value loss on.loans 160 91
Foreign exchange (gain)loss on natural hedges.of loans (29) 18
Foreign exchange-(gain)loss on derivatives (15) 31
Unrealised loss on commadities 78 34
Matured revenue hedges- 81 43
Foreign exchange.gain on:short-term deposits (14) {71y
Foreign exchange (gain)loss on cash-a@nd cash equivalents T2y 27
Finance expense (net). 206 125
Finance Income. (106) (176)
Exceptional items 137 3,242
Cash flows generated from operating activities before 1.576 1.667
changes in assets and liabilities ’ ’
Trade receivables 1,008 100
Other financial assets (95) (182)
Other current assets 74 145
inventories (158) (40)
Other non-current assets (419) (29)
Accounts payabie (587) (244)
Other current Habilities " {6) 34.
‘Other financial liabilities ‘ 27 5) .
Othér non-current liabilities and retirement benefit obligations 330 {69)
Provisions ' (9). 177

Cash.generated from operations 1,741 1,544
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (CONTINUED)
37 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(8) RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Balanice at.1 April 2018 2,967 3,060 2 6,029
Proceeds from issue of financing 2,179 1,214 - 3,393
Repayment:of finahcing (2,387) - (2) {2,389)
Reclassification of long-term-debt 768 (768) - =
Forelgn exchange 109 15 - 124
Arrangement fees paid - (18) - {18)
Fee amortisation 1 7 - 8
Reclassification of long-term. debt feas 1) 1 - -
Long-term borrowings revaluation in hedge .. 103 i 103
reserve _ :

Other non-cash movements n.loans to

subsidiaries o ) - - ©)
Fair value-adjustment on loans - (15) - (15)
Balance at 31 March 2019 3,631 3,599 - 7,230
Adjustment-on initial application of IFRS 16 - - 227 227
Proceeds from issue of financing 1,850 1,600 - 3,450
Issue of new leases - - 51 51
Repayment of financing (2,609) - (67) (2,676}
Interest-accrued , - - 17 17
Reclassification of long-term debt 577 577y - -
Foreign exchange 35 144 3 182
Artangement fees paid N {8 - (9)
Fee amortisation 2 8 - 10
"Reclassification of long-term debt fees: H 1 - -
Long-term borrowings revaluation in hedge ) 11 i i
reserve _

Other non-cash movements in.loans to .

subsidlaries move roan 285 ) B 298
Fair value adjustment on loans - 40 - 40

Balarice at 31 March 2020 3,779 '4,8'i8 231 8,828
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company’s related parties principally consist of Tata.Sons Ltd, subsidiaries and joirit ventures of Tata ’
Sons Ltd which includes Tata Motors Limited {the’ ultimate parent company), subsidiaries, jaint ventures
and associates of Tata Motors Limited. The company roiitinely enters into transactions with these related
parties In the ordinary course of business including trarisactions for sale and pirchase of products with its’
Jolnt ventures and associates.

The followifig table sumriarises related party transactions:and balances not eliminated In the company
financial statements. All related party transactions. are conducted under normal terms. of business. All
smounts outstanding are unsecured and-wifl be seitled in cash.

31 March 2020

Sale of products 12,399 217 oo 2 54
Purchase of products - - - - &
Services received - - 3 136. 81

Services rendered - 9 - - 1

Dividends received’ - 67 - - -
investments in the year - 67 6 - -
Interest income 20 - - - -
Initerest expense 260 - w - -
Trade and other receivables 608 59 - 1 20
Accounis payable 236 - 0 9 22
Loans receivable 1,807 - - - -
Loans payable ‘ ‘8,501 - - - -
31 March 2019

Sale of products’ 13,701 305 - 3. 76
‘Purchase of products - - - - -
Services received - - - 157 85
Services rendered - 757 2 - 1

Interest income 18 - - - : -
Interest expense 208 - - - -
Trade.and other receivables 1,164 7 - - 1 15
Accounts payablée 176 - _ - 35 17
Loans receivable 1,348 - - - -

Loans payable 7,181 - - - -
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

-Compensation of key management personnel

Short-term benefits 10

Post-employment benefits 1 1
Share-based payments - <
‘Otheér long-term employee benefits 3 -
Compensation for loss of office 1 -
Total compensation of key management persorinel 15 1

Refer to note:31 for information on transactions with past-employment benefit plans..

39  ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND PARENT COMPANY OF LARGER
GROUP

The immediate parent undertaking is Jaguar Land Rover Holdings Limited and ultimaite parent undertaking
and controlling party is Tata Motors.Limited, India which.is the parent of the largest group to cansolidate
these financial statements, The smallest group.which consolidates these finanicial statements.is Jaguar
Land Rover Autorative: plc

Copies of the Tata Motors Lirnitad, india consatidated financial statements can be obtained from the Group
Secretary; Tata Motors Limited, Bombay House, 24, Homi Mody Street, Mumbai — 400001, India. Coples
of the -Jaguar Land Rover Automotive. plé consolidated financial statements can be -obtained from the
company’s registered-office. .

40 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In the first quarter of the: year ended 31 March 2021, the company increased its fleet bbeack facility by
£63 miltion.

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, production, at:the- company’s factoiies. was hafted in March 2020.
After the balance sheet date, the following facteries have resumed production:

Salihull, UK - 18 May 2020

Caistle Bromwich, UK — 10 August 2020

Engine Manufacturing Centre, UK —18-May 2020
Nitra, Slovakia — 18 May 2020

Graz; Austria — 18 May 2020

Halewoad, UK — 8 June 2020

In October 2020, the comipany becarné a guarantor of $760 million-band maturing in 2025,




